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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of China Trustful
Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the annual
report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, referred to
as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The revenue of the Group from our continuing operations for the year
ended 31 December 2018 decreased by 58.9% to approximately
HK$215,696,000 when compared with that of the last year (2017:
HK$525,269,000) as mainly the sales of goods decreased under (i)
the intense competition in the market and (ii) the poor market
sentiment since the trade war between the US and China. National
Bureau of statistics of China has announced that the China’s gross
domestic product (the “GDP”) growth for the year of 2018 fell to
6.6%.
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CHAIRMAN’'S STATEMENT

The Group’s gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
approximately HK$75,940,000, representing a decrease of 59.7% as
compared with last year (2017: HK$188,313,000). The Group
recorded profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to
HK$9,281,000 (2017: HK$91,682,000).

In view of the global market uncertainties, the Group will closely
monitor the international and domestic market situations and remain
cautious on our portfolio management. At the same time, our
management team will continue to work hard to create the best
value to our shareholder via delivering products that exceed
customers’ expectation, while enhancing efficiency and focusing on
sustainable growth.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincerest
gratitude to our shareholders, board of directors, employees and
business partners for their outstanding performance and continued
support especially for Mr Stephen Ng, former ED and CEO, for all his
great leadership and collegiality.

Fei Jie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019

HE2018F12A81HIEFE » AEBEESEE
F4975,940,0007% 7T (20174 : 188,313,000
BIL) B EFE NYE9.7% c AEEBEE
20184512 A31H 1 4 [E 15 & 719,281,000
77T (20174F : 91,682,000 7T) ©

ERE2HMGTHLY  AEELEEINEER
EARITISARR  LHREREREERMOE
BHEE - BRI AEEEEBKKEES
REBHEFPEHMNER ReEME LI EH
INAFEREE  SHRBRRAERAEE -

RE AABRREFERORHAZEK
R BEFR BIREBBHNELRIRAR
—EXF - LHRWAMTEERITRES
hEERAEETRKEBAEMBEKEE -

FIE
BX

EF7B - 20193 H26H

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 ZF &R

5



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

Business Overview

For the year ended 31 December 2018, China Trustful Group Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) continued to engage in the business of the research and
development, manufacture and sale of rechargeable batteries,
electric vehicles and related products and provision of related
services (the “Electric Vehicle Business”) and the retail and wholesale
of luxury brand silverware, silver utensils and luxury goods in the
People’s Republic of China (“China”) (the “Silverware Business”),

To streamline our businesses, on 18 May 2018, the Group disposed
of the provision of sourcing and procurement solutions to customers
for production of watches, costume jewelries, and display and
packaging products (the “Sourcing Business”).

The Group is fully prepared and determined to become a strong
market player in the industries that our businesses belong to,
especially the green transportation and electric vehicles industry. The
Group will continue to build a strong and better corporate image and
identity, and also facilitate its future business development, grasp
every opportunity and face any new challenges.

Business Review

Results of the Group

In relation to the Electric Vehicle Business and the Silverware
Business (collectively referred to as the “Continuing Operations”),
during the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded
revenue of HK$215,696,000, representing a 58.9% decrease as
compared with the same period in 2017 (31 December 2017:
HK$525,269,000) and gross profit and gross profit margin of
HK$75,940,000 and 35.2% respectively (31 December 2017:
HK$188,313,000 and 35.9% respectively). Combining with the loss
generated from the Sourcing Business (the “Discontinued Operation”)
of HK$4,355,000 (31 December 2017: HK$7,143,000) and other
income and expenses, the Group recorded profit for the year ended
31 December 2018 of HK$9,281,000 (31 December 2017:
HK$91,682,000) and other comprehensive loss of HK$33,468,000
(31 December 2017: income of HK$25,242,000), being exchange
differences arising from translating foreign operations. Profit
attributable to owners of the Company from Continuing Operations
was HK$7,315,000 as compared with HK$84,365,000 for the same
period last year; whereas basic earnings per share for both
continuing and discontinued operations was HK0.12 cents (31
December 2017: HK3.66 cents).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

The Group’s selling and distribution costs and administrative
expenses, in total, increased from HK$42,944,000 for the same
period last year to HK$57,606,000 during the year ended 31
December 2018.

In general, the Group’s result during the year ended 31 December
2018 has been decreased and our business were affected by (i) the
intense competition in the market and (ii) numerous uncertainties
such as the trade war between the United States of America (“US”)
and China. Further description of the business performances from
our businesses are described below.

Electric Vehicle Business

The Electric Vehicle Business is comprised of two divisions namely
the battery division and electric vehicle division. The battery division
is engaged in the manufacture and supply of rechargeable lithium
batteries, while the electric vehicle division is engaged in the
manufacture of electric vehicles and provision of related services for
the Electric Vehicle Business.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, our revenue from the
Electric Vehicle Business was mainly derived from the selling of
rechargeable batteries, auto parts for the electric vehicles and
electric bus system solutions and provision of relevant consultancy
services. Under (i) the intense competition in the market and (ii) the
poor market sentiment since the economies faced a lot of
uncertainties including the trade war between the US and China and
the China’s gross domestic product (the “GDP”) growth for the year
of 2018 fell to 6.6%, revenue from Electric Vehicle Business was
dropped. The Group has been considering various strategies to
counter and minimize the contingent risks from the changing global
business environment. Our senior management has also been
actively exploring projects in relation to electric vehicles and electric
bus system solutions with good profitability in different countries and
cities including China, Macau, Hong Kong and some Southeast
Asian countries.

On 25 to 28 October 2018, Hong Kong Trade Development Council
held an exhibition named “Eco Expo Asia 2018”. China Trustful
Group Limited and its subsidiary, Ecological Green Transportation
Limited (“EGT”), a UK incorporated company which is a
wholly-owned subsidiary, were invited to participate in the Fair to
showcase its latest electric vehicles to global buyers. We were proud
to present our brand new full electric 12-metre single deck bus
which has been successfully certified against the internationally
recognised European Whole Vehicle Type Approval (ECWVTA)
standards.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

With today’s growing environmental awareness EGT is setting out to
offer practical solutions that help protect the environment and sustain
future generations to come by offering energy efficient transport
solutions.

EGT will utilise and combine the latest technological advances to
offer green, safe and reliable products that offer genuine benefits to
both the operators and passengers as well as the wider population
at large in terms of environmental protection and public health.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded
segment revenue of HK$174,164,000 (31 December 2017:
HK$456,017,000) in the Electric Vehicle Business, representing
80.7% of the Group’s total revenue generated from Continuing
Operations (31 December 2017: 86.8%). This segment recorded
segment profit of HK$22,054,000 (31 December 2017:
HK$122,731,000), and segment margin of 12.7% (31 December
2017: 26.9%).

Silverware Business

In 2018, the national and global economic were unstable and
complicated, there are numerous uncertainties such as the trade war
between the US and China. Also, GDP growth for the year of 2018
fell to 6.6% and the intense competition in the market. The Group
has been revamping its strategies to promote and sell our luxury
silverware products branded S.collodi by focusing in developing a
stable and long term relationship with its wholesale customers. Our
senior management has also been actively exploring potential new
wholesale customers who promotes silverware products with special
themes and/or through their online sales platform. However, in
overall, we received less sales orders from our customers.

In 2018, the Group introduced a new series of gift packs in
collaboration with our brand of silverwares. In relation to our
silverware retail operations, we have two premier stores as at 31
December 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Silverware Business
recorded a drop in segment revenue to HK$41,532,000 from
HK$69,252,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017, representing
19.3% of the Group’s total revenue (2017: 13.2%). It recorded
segment profit of HK$16,690,000 (2017: HK$40,368,000), and
segment margin of 40.2% (2017: 58.3%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

Sourcing Business

In view of the downturn of the Sourcing industry, the Group
discontinued the Sourcing Business by disposing of the entire issued
share capital of Powerwell Pacific Limited (the “Disposal”), which
through its subsidiaries was principally engaged in the provision of
sourcing and procurement solutions to customers for production of
watches, costume jewelries, and display and packaging products.
The Disposal was completed on 18 May 2018.

Immediately before the Disposal, this segment recorded revenue of
HK$10,379,000 (31 December 2017: HK$63,275,000). It recorded
loss for the period of HK$4,880,000 before disposal (31 December
2017: HK$7,143,000), and net profit margin of negative 47.0% (31
December 2017: 11.3%), as a result of the drop in both revenue and
profitability.

Disposal of the Entire Share Capital of Powerwell Pacific
Limited

In respect of the Disposal, the Group recorded a gain from the
Disposal of HK$525,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018. In
respect of this discontinued operation, a net loss for the year ended
31 December 2018 of HK$4,880,000 (31 December 2017: net loss
for the year HK$7,143,000) was recorded to the Group before its
disposal. Details of the results of the discontinued operation and the
Disposal are presented in notes 10 and 41 to the consolidated
financial statement and the announcement of the Company dated 18
May 2018.

Financial Review

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had current assets of
HK$583,717,000 (2017: HK$792,733,000) comprising cash and
cash equivalents of HK$56,683,000 (2017: HK$293,853,000), and
net current assets of HK$510,221,000 (2017: HK$540,996,000). The
Group did not have any bank borrowings, guarantee and banking
facilities, while the Group’s other borrowings included a secured loan
amounted to HK$nil (2017: HK$15,000,000), amounts due to a
Director HK$30,000,000 (2017: HK$nil) and amount due to
non-controlling interests HK$122,000 (2017: HK$118,000), details of
which are described in notes 26 and 23 to the consolidated financial
statements. As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s equity attributable
to owners of the Company increased by HK$34,177,000 to
HK$637,726,000 (2017: HK$603,549,000), which was mainly due to
the exercise of convertible bonds and share options.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has fully repaid
the secured loan HK$15,000,000 which was denominated in Hong
Kong dollars with variable interest rate at 1% per annum above the
HKD prime lending rate published by The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited and is fully secured by the shares
charge in respect of the entire share capital of Powerwell Pacific
Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands).

The Group’s gearing ratio represented its total borrowings over the
equity attributable to owners of the Company. As at 31 December
2018, the Group had total borrowings amounted to HK$30,122,000
(2017: HK$66,444,000). The Group’s equity attributable to owners
of the Company as at 31 December 2018 amounted to
HK$637,726,000 (2017:HK$603,549,000). The Group’s gearing ratio
was therefore maintained at a low level of 4.7%, which was lower
than that at 31 December 2017 of 11.0%, as a result of the exercise
of convertible bonds and share options.

The Group’s current ratio, calculated based on current assets of
HK$583,717,000 (2017: HK$792,733,000) over current liabilities of
HK$73,496,000 (2017: HK$251,737,000), was at a healthy level of
7.94 times (2017: 3.15 times).

As at 31 December 2018, our trade receivables amounted to
HK$183,787,000, which was a decrease of HK$197,927,000
compared to HK$381,714,000 as at 31 December 2017, our trade
payables as at 31 December 2018 also decreased to
HK$13,490,000 from HK$114,395,000 as at 31 December 2017.
The significant decrease in these balances was mainly due to the
outstanding balances due from our customers/to our suppliers from
the Electric Vehicle Business. These customers are mainly the travel
bus distributors in the PRC, and eyeing on the bulk future sales
orders from these customers, the Group granted credit terms of 180
days for part of the outstanding balances. As at the date of this
annual report, trade receivables as at 31 December 2018,
approximately 40% has been settled. Our Directors have reviewed
the recoverability of the trade receivables and considered that no
further allowance of credit losses in respect of trade receivables was
required for the year ended 31 December 2018. Details of allowance
of credit losses in respect of trade receivables are set out in note 21
to the consolidated financial statement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

Furthermore, the deposits, prepayments and other receivables of the
Group increased from HK$70,517,000 as at 31 December 2017 to
HK$271,485,000 as at 31 December 2018 as a result of the Group’s
operating business in which deposits were made in accordance with
the contracts terms. The balance as at 31 December 2018 included
guarantee deposits paid to a customer amounted to HK$68,316,000
(2017: HK$53,022,000), which is expected to be fully recovered
within one year. The guarantee deposits paid during the year ended
31 December 2017 was fully recovered during the year ended 31
December 2018.

As the cash and cash equivalents of the Group amount to
HK$56,683,000 as at 31 December 2018, with other current assets,
the Directors consider the Company has ability to meet its obligation
when they fall due.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the issued share capital
of the Company increased from 2,151,209,327 shares of HK$0.02
each to 2,675,424,685 shares as a result of the exercise of
remaining 37,500,000 share options on 18 May 2018, and the
conversion of all outstanding convertible bonds into 486,715,358
conversion shares on 1 June 2018. Details of the convertible bonds
and share options are set out in the sections headed “Convertible
Bonds” and “Share Option Scheme” below.

The Group continues to maintain a prudent approach in managing its
financial requirements. In the long run, the Group finances its daily
operations and future acquisitions from internally generated cash
flows and/or external debt and/or by equity fund raisings.

Convertible Bonds
On 1 June 2016, the Company issued convertible bonds with
principal amount of HK$110,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”) as
the consideration payable of the sale assets under the sale and
purchase agreement dated 5 November 2015 entered into by # /M 15
(EE)TE AR A A (Huzhou Xincheng Electric Vehicle Co., Ltd*), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and as the
purchaser, and MM BKEMBR AT (Huzhou Brighsun Battery
Co., Ltd*) and M BE K EEARRAF (Huzhou Brighsun Automobile
Co., Ltd*) (“Brighsun Automobile”) collectively as the vendors, and &=
& (Huang Kejun) and E4R)T (Zhang Genjiang) collectively as the
guarantors. The holders of the Convertible Bonds have the right to
convert the outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Bonds
on the expiry of 6 months from the date of issue of the Convertible
Bonds up to the maturity date of 1 June 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

On 1 June 2018, as permitted under the terms of Convertible Bonds
and with the written consent of the Company, Convertible Bonds
with an aggregate principal amount of HK$53,051,974 had been
transferred from Brighsun Automobile to Smart Focus Inc Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Brighsun Automobile. The Company also
received a conversion notice from Smart Focus Inc Limited for the
exercise of the conversion rights attaching to the Convertible Bonds
with an aggregate principal of HK$53,051,974 at the Conversion
Price of HK$0.109 per conversion share (the “Conversion”). Upon
such Conversion, a total of 486,715,358 conversion shares has been
allotted and issued, credited as fully paid, to Smart Focus Inc Limited
in accordance with the provisions of the Convertible Bonds. The
486,715,358 conversion shares, having an aggregate nominal value
of HK$9,734,307.16, represent approximately 22.24% and 18.19%
of the issued share capital of the Company immediately before and
after the issue of such conversion shares respectively. After the
Conversion and as at 31 December 2018, there are no outstanding
Convertible Bonds as at 31 December 2018.

Share Option Scheme

On 27 May 2015 (the “Date of Grant”), the Company granted share
options (the “Share Options”) to the eligible persons within the Group
(the “Grantees”) pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme
launched on 22 December 2010, subject to acceptance by the
Grantees. The Share Options entitle the Grantees to subscribe for a
total of 15,000,000 ordinary shares with nominal value of HK$0.10
each in the capital of the Company upon exercise of the Share
Options in full. The exercise price of the Share Options granted of
HK$1.17 per share represent the highest of (i) the closing price of
HK$1.17 per share on the Date of Grant; (i) the average closing price
of HK$1.04 per share for the five business days immediately
preceding the Date of Grant; and (iii) the nominal value of HK$0.10
per share. Details of the Grant of Share Options was set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 27 May 2015. 7,500,000
options had been exercised and gross proceeds of HK$8,775,000
was received from exercise of these options. Upon the subdivision of
shares from par value of HK$0.10 each into five subdivided shares of
par value of HK$0.02 each which became effective on 4 May 2016,
the exercise price and the number of outstanding options were
adjusted to HK$0.234 and 37,500,000 options respectively in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Share Option
Scheme. On 18 May 2018, the 37,500,000 options had been
exercised and gross proceeds of HK$8,775,000 was received from
exercise of these options. There are no outstanding share options as
at 31 December 2018.

China Trustful Group Limited FBEIZ2EE£BERE 2 T

EIEEmE AT

MR2018FE6A1H BB EHF ZIER

FrAasr THEESAQRFE@REZBR
T K& 4% 553,051,974 T 2 A2 A% &
FEHBMNBEXEETERFERAE CHM
BRHMEZERBAR) - NARNEEER
ERARZERBN REFHETHELS
#A%A 553,051,9748 7L 2 Al IR B HFFT i 2
B EBRELABREBRAKH0.10975E T
([8#a]) - NBBEERIE - 53£486,715,358
R R ERIBEATRBRES 2 G A
BRI AMRFAREERETTERFERA
A] ° 5%486,715,358 M IR ik (R E B &
9,734,307.16/& 7T) » ik B# 1T B B
PR A R BREEEARREEHTRAL
22.24%%18.19% o ¥ {1 1% K& 722018412
A318 - WEMN2018F12 A31B K ARITEZ
AR ES -

fER T 2

R2015F5H278 ((EHE AER]) - AR RR
B ER2010F 128228 #H 2 BT &
BAAEEZAERAT(TEREADRLEER
E(BRE]  WEGRRAEME 77
15T - BRIEEARE I T AR AR R 0 B AR 4
JER BT 1% REE A 15,000,000 A& A &)
AR G EEOA0B T 2 Mk - FT
BREZTFEESR1A7ETHER TIE
HEGZEESE: (REROBHZKTES
R H1178 T (NBERE BHATA@EE
XA ZFHRTEETRRM.048 7T Ki)
SRBMHEECAOEIL - HEHERENFS
HN A QA B E A2015F5827HH A ff o
7,500,000 B REE ST - WHAZF B
T ME 1T M U B AT 1S 3R T8 42 588,775,0008
TC o FEREE010E T2 B IFE D AT
TR EE0.027 7T 2 #F 7 I 17 W 72201645
R4BERIE - TEBREARITERBRE 2 &
B ERIEERER S 2 G RAR D B FAE
730.2347%8 7T %.37,500,00017 B P #E - 22018
F5H18H » 37,500,000 B A% #E 2 ETT{E -
I PR A% S5 R IR I 1T i MR B PR 1S BB B R
8,775,000/ JT ° }A20184F12A31H » i &
W ARITE 2 AR -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

Contingent Consideration Receivables and Profit
Guarantee

There was no contingent consideration receivables and profit
guarantee for the year ended 31 December 2018. For the year ended
31 December 2017, pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement
(the “Core Kingdom Agreement”) entered in relation to the acquisition
of Core Kingdom Limited dated 8 December 2014 (the “Core
Kingdom Acquisition”), Mr. Chow Tsi Tung (“Mr. Chow”), being the
vendor in the Core Kingdom Acquisition, provided an irrecoverable
and unconditional guarantee in favour of the Company that the
audited net profits of WNTRIRE ¢ BLEEHR AR (Zhejiang Tong
Yin Precious Metal Operation Company Limited*) (“Tong Yin”), an
indirect 51%-owned subsidiary of the Company, for the three years
ended 31 December 2015, 31 December 2016 and 31 December
2017 shall be no less than RMB20 million, RMB24 million and
RMB30 million respectively (the “Guaranteed Net Profit”). A
contingent consideration receivable has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position of the Group which was
measured at fair value at each of the end of the reporting period.

The audited net profits of Tong Yin for the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2016 were no less than the Guaranteed Net Profit.
However, for the year ended 31 December 2017, the audited net
profit of Tong Yin was RMB25,586,000 (equivalent to
HK$29,512,000), which was lower than the Guarantee Net Profit of
RMB30,000,000. As a result, pursuant to the Core Kingdom
Agreement, the Company recognised a compensation from profit
guarantee of HK$2,596,000 as at 31 December 2017, which is to be
paid by Mr. Chow and was calculated as 51% of the difference
between the audited net profit of Tong Yin and the Guaranteed Net
Profit for the year ended 31 December 2017.

For further details of the Core Kingdom Acquisition and the profit
guarantee, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
9 December 2014, 8 January 2015, 9 February 2015, 27 February
2015 and 29 March 2018.

Connected Transaction

There was no connected transaction for the year ended 31
December 2018 except the exempt connected transaction of
HK$30,000,000 set out in note 23 and 31 to consolidated financial
statement.

On 8 November 2017, International Faith Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, served an exercise notice
on Mr. Zhang Genjiang (“Mr. Zhang”), the executive Director and a
substantial shareholder of the Company, to exercise the put option
and to require Mr. Zhang to purchase 1,200 ordinary shares of
Brighsun Ev-tech Co., Limited, representing 10% of the issued
shares, at the consideration of HK$9,000,000. Further details of this
transaction was set out in the announcement of the Company dated
8 November 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with the
applicable requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules
with regard to the related party transactions set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements which were also connected
transaction.

Income Tax

The effective tax rate for the year was 33.8% (2017: 30.9%), which
was higher for the tax rates applicable to the relevant jurisdictions
ranging from 0% to 25%.

Foreign Currency Management

The Group’s transactions, trade receivables, trade payables and
cash and cash equivalents are mainly denominated in United States
dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Therefore, the Group is
exposed to foreign currency exchange rate risk. The directors of the
Company have a positive attitude to regularly monitor the Group’s
exposure to foreign exchange so as to reduce the foreign exchange
rate risk to a minimum level. To a larger extent, foreign exchange
risks were minimised via balancing the foreign currency monetary
assets versus the corresponding currency liabilities, and foreign
currency revenues versus the corresponding currency expenditures.
In light of the above, it was considered that the Group’s exposure to
foreign exchange risks was not significant and no hedging measure
had been undertaken by the Group.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2018 (2017: Nil).

Pledge of Assets
As at 31 December 2018, save as disclosed above, no other assets
of the Group were pledged (2017: Nil).

Capital Commitments
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had material capital
commitments of HK$22,400,000 (2017: HK$716,000).

Dividends

The Group did not recommend the payment of any dividend during
the year ended 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

Significant Investments Held and Material Acquisitions
and Disposals

Except for the disposal of the entire share capital of Powerwell
Pacific Limited discussed in the section headed “Disposal of the
Entire Share Capital of Powerwell Pacific Limited”, there were no
significant investment held as at 31 December 2018, and there were
no material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

The Group had 98 (2017: 113) employees as at 31 December 2018.
Total staff costs for the year, including Directors’ remuneration, was
HK$19,388,000 (2017: HK$32,855,000). The Group’s remuneration
practices are in line with the prevailing market practice and are
determined on the basis of performance, qualification and experience
of individual employee. The Group recognises the importance of a
good relationship with the employees by providing competitive
remuneration package to the employees including salaries,
allowances, insurance, discretionary bonus, share option scheme
and training for human resources upskilling.

Fund Raising Activity

Placing of New Shares under General Mandate

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company issued
100,000,000 shares to not less than six placees at a placing price of
HK$2.80 per share. The placing price was agreed with the placing
agent in a placing agreement dated 21 April 2017, and the closing
price quoted on the Exchange as at that date was HK$3.32 per
share. The net placing price was approximately HK$2.78 per share.
The number of the Company’s issued shares increased from
2,051,209,327 as at 1 January 2017 to 2,151,209,327 upon the
completion of the Placing on 25 May 2017. The gross proceeds
raised by the Company from the Placing amounted to
HK$280,000,000, and the net proceeds raised, after the deduction
of share issuing expenses, was approximately HK$277,760,000. The
Company intended to apply HK$20,000,000 for general working
capital of the Group and the remaining balance for the development
of the Electric Vehicle Business. Further details of the Placing have
been set out in the Company’s announcements dated 21 April 2017
and 25 May 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, of the net proceeds of the Placing of
HK$277,760,000, approximately HK$138,000,000 were
subsequently used in the operation of the Electric Vehicle Business,
while approximately HK$9,760,000 were used in general working
capital for our Hong Kong operation. Approximately HK$130,000,000
was remained unused and placed with licensed banks in Hong Kong
and the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND EIEJE 5t :m

ANALYSIS

During year ended 31 December 2018, the HK$130,000,000 was

used as follows:

Net proceeds raised and unutilised
as at 31 December 2017

R2017F12A31HEE R
REBTERIBEFEE

HK$130,000,000
(the “Unutilised Proceeds”)

130,000,000/ 7T ([ REV A PAISRIA D)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s businesses, financial conditions, results of operations or
growth prospects may be affected by risks and uncertainties directly
or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The risk factors
that could result in the Group’s businesses, financial conditions,
results of operations or growth prospects are identified as below,
while there may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those 4 -
identified below which are not known to the Group or which may not
be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

e

& £2018%F12H31H L & [ - 130,000,000
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Intended use of the Unutilised
proceeds
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HK$119,760,000

— development of Electric Vehicle
Business

119,760,000/ 7T

—BEBEHIEED

HK$10,240,000
— general working capital
10,240,000/ 7T
——REEER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

Market Risk

As the growth of traditional automobile market worldwide is expected
to slow down, more and more automobile manufacturers enter into
the green transportation and electric vehicle industry. Market risk
arises from the intensifying competitions of the Electric Vehicle
Business of the Group.

With an aim to become one of the market leaders in the green
transportation and electric vehicle industry, not only have we
engaged qualified managerial, operational and marketing team to
deal with the Electric Vehicle Business, in order to minimise the
market risk, the Group also builds our competitive edge in the
Electric Vehicle Business by being customer-oriented and provision
of tailor-made solutions to our customers.

Regulatory Risk

The Group is exposed to regulatory risks, especially in the Electric
Vehicle Business, in relation to failure to comply with relevant laws
and regulations in financial, operational and environment aspects.
While there is no non-compliance of laws and regulations during the
year, the Group will remain sensitive to any changes in the
regulations, and respond to any changes to ensure our businesses
comply with the relevant policies.

Financial Risks
Details of the financial risks are set out in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Currency Market Risk

The Group’s currency exposure mainly arises from its businesses
and assets based in the PRC, further details of which are set out in
the paragraph “Foreign Currency Management” under the section
headed “Financial Review” above.

Global Economic and Environment Risk

In 2018, the national and global economic environments was
unstable and complicated, the economies faced a lot of uncertainties
including the trade war between the US and China.

National Bureau of Statistics of the People’s Republic of China has
announced that the China’s gross domestic product growth for the
year of 2018 fell to 6.6% and the manufacturing Purchasing
Managers’ Index was 49.4 in December 2018 which was below the
threshold 50 which indicate the China manufacturers’ contraction in
purchasing activities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

Looking forward to 2019, the Group would continue to provide
quality services and to expand customer base into the industries it
already set foot in. In case of adverse market condition, we will pay
close attention to the market changes of the industries involved and
adjust our business strategies in a timely manner to avoid visible
risks. The Group will take risk management and risk investigation as
its paramount concerns, and improve its asset management and
team management abilities while enhancing the comprehensive
strength of the Group.

Subsequent Events After the Reporting Period

There is no significant event took place subsequent to the end of the
reporting period.
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Pursuant to Rule 18.44(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is
pleased to present this corporate governance report for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (the “Year”). This report highlights the
key corporate governance practices of the Company.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Group is committed to upholding high standards of corporate
governance. The Board considers that enhanced public
accountability and corporate governance are beneficial for the
healthy growth of the Group, improving customer and supplier
confidence and safeguarding the interests of shareholders of the
Company.

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules throughout the Year.
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Securities Transactions by Directors and Relevant

Employees

The Company adopted the model code for securities transactions by
the Directors (the “Model Code”) on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. On specific enquiry made, all the Directors have
confirmed compliance with the Model Code throughout the Year.

Relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Company are also subject to compliance with
guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code for the
Year.

Board of Directors
The Board is currently composed of six Directors, three being
executive Directors and three being independent non-executive
Directors as set out below.

Executive Directors

Mr. Fei Jie, Chairman

Mr. Ng Chin Ming Stephen, Chief Executive Officer
(resigned with effect from 28 February 2019)

Mr. Zhang Genjiang

Mr. Fung Chi Kin (appointed with effect from 1 March 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Jim Yiu Ming

Mr. Shen Ruolei

Mr. Sit Sai Hung, Billy

The Board is responsible for the overall management and affairs of
the Company and to maximise returns for shareholders. The day-to-
day operations and management of the Company are delegated to
the executive Directors and senior management of the Company.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
“Biographies of Directors” of this annual report.
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Disclosure of Changes in Information of Director
Pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, changes in
Directors’ information since the date of the Interim Report 2018 are
set out below:

1. Mr. Ng Chin Ming Stephen has resigned as executive director,
chief executive officer, compliance officer and other positions
in the Group with effect from 28 February 2019.

2. Mr. Fung Chi Kin has been appointed as executive director
and compliance officer with effect from 1 March 2019.

Chairman and Chief Executive

During the period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018,
Mr. Ng Chin Ming Stephen as the CEO was responsible for managing
and smoothing business operations of the Group while Mr. Fei Jie as
the Chairman was responsible for leading the Board in the overall
strategic management and business development of the Group.

With effect from 28 February 2019, Mr. Ng Chin Ming Stephen has
resigned as executive director, chief executive officer, compliance
officer and other positions in the Group. The position of Chairman is
currently held by Mr. Fei Jie.

Independent Non-executive Directors

In compliance with the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has
appointed three independent non-executive Directors representing
more than one-third of the Board and at least one of whom has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The functions of independent non-executive Directors are primarily to
bring an independent judgement on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standards of conducts at board meetings.

Confirmation of Independence

Each of independent non-executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation of independence by reference to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the Company considers that all Independent Non-
executive Directors were independent during the Year.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Except for Mr. Zhang Genjiang, an executive Director, who is
appointed for terms of three years, all the Directors, including
independent non-executive Directors, are appointed for terms of one
year. All the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and
eligible for re-election in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.
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In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, (i) any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until
the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment and
be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election; and (ii) at each annual
general meeting, not less than one-third of the Directors then in
office shall retire and every Director is subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Relationships and Association among the

Directors
There was no relationships between members of the Board, including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development
During the Year, the Company provides regular updates on the
business performance of the Group to the Directors, so as to ensure
that they had appropriate understanding of the Group’s businesses
and of their duties and responsibilities under the GEM Listing Rules
and the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements. The Directors
are continually updated on the latest development regarding the
GEM Listing Rules and other applicable statutory requirements to
ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance
practices.

Board Diversity Policy

Recognising the benefits of having a diversified Board, the Company
adopts a board diversity policy and aims to achieve diversity in the
Board in order to achieve a sustainable and balanced development
for the businesses of the Group. Selection of candidates for the
members of the Board are made through the consideration of a
different aspects including age, gender, cultural and ethnic
background, professional qualification, skills, knowledge and length
of services. Besides the above aspects, the Nomination Committee
will consider whether the Board composition, as a whole, has
sufficient diverse expertise particularly in corporate management,
financial control, business development and human resources
management. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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Board Meetings Held and Attendance

The CG Code requires regular meeting of the Board be held at least
four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Such Board
meetings involve the active participation, either in person or by
telephone conference. Under code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code,
notice of at least 14 days should be given of a regular board meeting
to all Directors to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. Certain
regular Board meetings were convened with less than 14 days’
notice to enable the Board members to react timely and make
expeditious decision making in respect of transactions which were of
significance to the Group’s businesses. As a result, the Board
meetings were held with a shorter notice period than required with
the consent of all the Directors for that time being. The Board will do
its best endeavours to meet the requirement of code provision A.1.3
of the CG Code in future. Adequate and appropriate information is
circulated normally three days in advance of Board meetings to the
Directors. In addition to the regular Board meetings, the Chairman
met with independent non-executive Directors without the presence
of other executive Directors.
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The attendance records of the Directors at Board meetings and ZBEERAFERITHNESSLENEEELE
Board Committee meetings held during the Year are set out below: RN EEDREENDOT -

Number of meetings attended/Eligible to attend’
HE eERtRNERHE
Remuneration Audit  Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee

EXE€ FMWZEE EXZEEE REZEE

Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Fei Jie, Chairman BALE TF 12/12 N/AT i B N/ATE F N/ATiEF
Mr. Ng Chin Ming Stephen, mRBRE

Chief Executive Officer TR AE %

(resigned with effect from 28 February 2019)  (B201942 /288 ##1F) 11/12 N/ATE B N/A i N/AT i F
Mr. Zhang Genjiang ERIAE 9/12 N/ATN 8 A N/ATNE N/ATNE

Independent Non-executive Directors BAERTEE

Mr. Jim Yiu Ming ERRLE 12/12 3/3 5/5 1/1

Mr. Shen Ruolei HEBERE 11/12 3/3 5/5 11

Mr. Sit Sai Hung, Billy BitEEE 12/12 3/3 5/5 1/1

i Number of meetings held during the Year or during the tenure of the Directors/ ' REAFERES EEZEGRERAFENTH
Board Committee members for the Year (if such Director was appointed or NHZEERAEEREZISTBEIES &
ceased to be a Director/Board Committee member part way during the Year) FELEGNE) BITHNEHRE
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General Meetings Held and Attendance
The attendance records of the Directors at general meetings held

during the Year is set out below:

ERTHERRAEMHFEBR
FENAEREBTHRIAS 00 F TS
UM -

Number of meetings attended/
Eligible to attend’

HE c&8HBENEREE"
Annual General Special General
Meeting Meeting
BEEAFEXE BRI XE
Executive Directors BITEE
Mr. Fei Jie, Chairman BRNEE  FE 1/1 1/1
Mr. Ng Chin Ming Stephen, MEBPELE -
Chief Executive Officer T A
(resigned with effect from 28 February 2019) (201992 528 A #EF#T) 1/1 1/1
Mr. Zhang Genjiang ERIAA 1/1 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BIERITESE
Mr. Jim Yiu Ming AR A 1/1 1/1
Mr. Shen Ruolei LB EEAE 1/1 1/1
Mr. Sit Sai Hung, Billy Bt A 1/1 1/1

! Number of meetings held during the Year or during the tenure of the Directors (if
such Director was appointed or ceased to be a Director part way during the Year)

! RAFEREREENAFENERNRN(HZEFRA
FERZEXTHEEES) BTNTRRE
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Remuneration Committee

As at 31 December 2018, the Remuneration Committee comprised
all independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Jim Yiu Ming,
Mr. Sit Sai Hung, Billy and Mr. Shen Ruolei. Mr. Sit Sai Hung, Billy is
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The primary duties of
the Remuneration Committee are making recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s policy and structure for the Directors and
senior management remuneration, making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual Director and
ensuring that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration. Specific terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are published on the websites of the
Company and the Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the Year to
review the remuneration package of the Directors.

Audit Committee

As at 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee comprised all
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Jim Yiu Ming,
Mr. Sit Sai Hung, Billy and Mr. Shen Ruolei. Mr. Sit Sai Hung, Billy is
the chairman of the Audit Committee, who has appropriate
professional qualifications and experience as required by the GEM
Listing Rules. Specific terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
published on the websites of the Company and the Exchange. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) monitoring and ensuring a proper relationship with the
Company’s auditors;

(b)  reviewing the Group’s quarterly, interim and annual reports and
compliance with accounting standards, the GEM Listing Rules,
and legal requirements before submission to the Board; and

(c) overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control system.

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the Year, to review
the Group’s quarterly, interim and annual financial statements, to
review the annual audit plan of the external auditors, to meet and
discuss with the external auditors about audit findings, and to
discuss with the Board about re-appointment of the external auditor
and the progress of internal control review performed by an external
advisor.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements

of the Group for the Year and recommended to the Board the
approval and announcement of such financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

As at 31 December 2018, the Nomination Committee comprised all
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Jim Yiu Ming,
Mr. Sit Sai Hung, Billy and Mr. Shen Ruolei. Mr. Jim Yiu Ming is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are to review the size, structure and
composition of the Board, identify suitably qualified individual for
appointment to the Board, assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors and make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of the Directors and
succession planning for the Directors. The Nomination Committee is
also responsible for ensuring the Board comprises diversity of
perspectives appropriate for the Company’s healthy development.
The Nomination Committee considered that the Board has sufficient
diverse expertise, particularly in corporate management, financial
control, business development and human resources management,
for the Company’s businesses, while gender diversity is not directly
relevant to the quality of the Board. Specific terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are published on the websites of the
Company and the Exchange.

When making recommendations regarding the appointment of any
proposed candidate to the Board or re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board, the Nomination Committee shall consider a
variety of factors including without limitation the following in
assessing the suitability of the proposed candidate:

a. Reputation for integrity.

b. Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy.

C. Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a
Board member and other directorships and significant
commitments.

d. Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service.

e. Such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.
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These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be exhaustive
and decisive. The Nomination Committee may consider other factors
so to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business. The Nomination Committee has the discretion
to nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year to
review the size, structure and composition of the Board, the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors and the
suitability of the Directors proposed for re-appointment at the
Company’s annual general meeting, and make recommendations to
the Board for the Directors newly appointed during the Year.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate
governance duties as required under the CG Code:

(@) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(b) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management of the Group;

(c) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) developing, reviewing and monitoring the codes of conduct,
where applicable, to employees and the Directors; and

(e) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosures in this report.

During the Year, the Board had reviewed the compliance with the
CG Code and the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group through the Audit Committee.

Company Secretary

Any executive Director will be the person to whom such external
service provider can contact with. The Company appointed Ms. Hui
Wai Man, Shirley (“Ms. Hui”) as the company secretary of the
Company from an external secretarial services provider. In
accordance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Ms. Hui
confirmed that she has taken no less than 15 hours of the relevant
professional training during the Year.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

For the Year, fees for audit and non-audit services paid/payable to
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, the auditors of the Company,
amounted to HK$610,000 and HK$224,000 respectively. The non-
audit services included professional services rendered for interim
review and agreed-upon procedures engagements.

Risk Management and Internal Control
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

The Group’s risk management process includes risk identification,
risk evaluation, risk management and risk control and review. The
Group’s risk management framework sets out the risk management
process as described below:

(@ The head of each businesses and functions of the Group,
including areas covering financial, operational, compliance and
risk management functions, is entrusted with duties in
identifying, evaluating and managing risks within its own
division regularly. Mitigation plans are implemented to manage
the risks after taking into account the objectives of each
businesses.

(b)  The senior management, including the CEO, is responsible for
overseeing the risk management and internal control activities
of the Group through regular meetings with each division to
ensure principal risks are properly addressed and any material
internal control defects are properly identified and well
addressed.

(c) The Board is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems through
regular meetings with the senior management. In addition, the
Audit Committee, taking into consideration of the advices and
opinions from the external professional internal control
consultant, is responsible for ensuring the sufficiency and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems through regular inspection and monitoring.

The Group has conducted a review of the implemented risk
management and internal control systems. The systems are
implemented to minimise the risk to which the Group is exposed and
is used as a management tool for the day-to-day operation of
business. The system can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against misstatement or losses.
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The Group does not have an internal audit function as the Board has
reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Company and is currently of the view that there is no immediate
need to set up an internal audit function within the Group in light of
the size, nature and complexity of the Group’s business. The
situation will be reviewed from time to time.

The Group has engaged ZHONGHUI ANDA Risk Services Limited,
external professional internal control consultant, to conduct
independent internal control review for the Year and the review is
completed as at the date of this annual report.

For the Year, the Board considered the Group’s internal control
system as adequate and effective and that the Company has
complied with the code provisions on internal control of the Code.

Procedures and Internal Controls for the Handling

and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Group complies with requirements of Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ”) and the GEM Listing Rules. The Group discloses
inside information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable
unless the information falls within any of the safe harbours as
provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the
public, the Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential.
If the Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality
cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may have been
breached, the Group would immediately disclose the information to
the public. The Group is committed to ensure that information
contained in announcements or circulars are not false or misleading
as to a material fact, or false or misleading through the omission of a
material fact in view of presenting information in a clear and balanced
way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive and negative
facts.

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of the
Group’s consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view. As at 31 December 2018, the Directors were not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as going
concern. The responsibility of auditors in respect of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements are set out in the independent
auditors’ report forming part of this annual report.
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Communications with Shareholders and

Investor Relations

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy to
maintain an on-going dialogue with its shareholders and investors in
a timely, open and transparent manner. The Board reviews the policy
on a regular basis to ensure effective communication between the
Company, its shareholders and investors.

The Board communicates with its shareholders and investors through
various channels. The Board meets and communicates with
shareholders and investors at annual general meetings and other
general meetings. Corporate communications (such as quarterly,
interim and annual reports, notices, circulars and announcements)
are sent to shareholders in a timely manner and are available on the
websites of the Company and the Exchange.

During the Year, there was no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents.

Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

According to Bye-law 85 of the Company’s Bye-laws, a shareholder
of the Company (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified
to attend and vote at an annual general meeting of the Company
may propose a person for election as a director at such meeting by
lodging a notice in writing signed by such shareholder of his intention
to propose such person for election and a notice in writing signed by
the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected at the
head office of the Company or the office of the Hong Kong branch
share registrar of the Company provided that the minimum length of
the period, during which such notices are given, shall be at least
seven days and that (if the notices are submitted after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election) the
period for lodgement of such notices shall commence on the day
after the despatch of the notice of the meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
meeting.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special
General Meeting

Other than election at annual general meeting, pursuant to Bye-law
58 of the Company’s Bye-laws, shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition, including
election of directors, and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21)
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with
the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda.

Procedures for Shareholders to Direct Enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders can put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries shall be in
writing and sent by post to the headquarter and place of business of
the Company at Units 2610-2611, 26/F, China Merchants Tower,
Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong,
for the attention of the company secretary of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

FEI Jie, aged 39, was appointed as an executive Director on 2
September 2014 and appointed as the Chairman of the Board on 22
September 2014. He has over 13 years of experience in
management level positions from deputy manager to chairman of the
board in several companies located in Zhejiang province, the PRC,
two of which are mining related companies.
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ZHANG Genjiang, aged 53, has been appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 9 May 2017. Currently, Mr. Zhang is serving
as the Chairman of Zhejiang Zhisin Holding Group (4L 2 {& 122 f% 5= &
BR A7), the Vice President of China Precious Metals Industry
Committee, the Standing Vice President of Zhejiang Precious Metals
Professional Committee, the Deputy Director of Shanghai Leasing
Industry Association and the Deputy Director of Hangzhou Huzhou
Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Zhang holds a Bachelor Degree from
University of Science and Technology Beijing (Industrial Automation
Department), and studied at Xiamen University. Mr. Zhang worked in
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China after his graduation and
was employed as an economist in 1992. Mr. Zhang served as the
General Manager of Beihai Nandu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
dt/EmEEER AR A R]) since 1996 and was appointed as the
Chairman of Zhejiang Taiheng Gold Sales Co., Ltd. ({I/ T AE =& 84
E AR AR from 2006. Mr. Zhang qualified as a Senior Gold
Investment Analyst at the national level in November 2007. In 2010,
Mr. Zhang graduated from the Doctor Degree course of Renmin
University of China. Since 2008, Mr. Zhang has served as the
Chairman of the Board of Zhejiang Zhisin Holding Group.
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FUNG Chi Kin, aged 69, has been appointed as executive director
and compliance officer with effect from 1 March 2019. He is the
Honorary Permanent President of The Chinese Gold & Silver
Exchange Society and Director of Fung Chi Kin Consulting Limited.
Mr. Fung has over 33 years of experience in banking and finance.
Prior to his retirement, he was the Director and Deputy General
Manager of Po Sang Bank Limited (merged into Bank of China (Hong
Kong) Limited in 2001), Managing Director of BOCI Securities Limited
and Chief Administration Officer of BOC International Holdings
Limited. From October 1998 to June 2000, Mr. Fung served as a
Council Member of the First Legislative Council of the HKSAR. He
also held offices in various public organisations and was the Vice
Chairman of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, Director of
the Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited, Director of Hong Kong
Securities Clearing Company Limited and Hong Kong Affairs Advisor.
Mr. Fung has been an independent non-executive director of Chaoda
Modern Agriculture (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 682) since 2003.
Mr. Fung has also been an independent non-executive director of
Kenford Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 464) and Geotech
Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 1707) since 2017. Mr. Fung was an
executive director of the Company and also a director of a number of
the Company’s subsidiaries during the period from September 2014
to May 2017.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

JIM Yiu Ming, aged 52, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a
member of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee on 22 September 2014. Mr. Jim is a practicing solicitor in
Hong Kong and is the founding partner of Jim & Co., Solicitors. He
obtained the Degree of Bachelor of Laws at The University of Hong
Kong in 1989 and completed the Postgraduate Certificate in Laws at
The University of Hong Kong in 1991.

SHEN Ruolei, aged 73, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director and a member of the Nomination Committee on 4
February 2016. He was also appointed as a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee on 8 May 2017.
Mr. Shen, a graduate of School of Finance at Central University of
Finance and Economics, and is a senior economist. He has been a
manager, deputy division chief and deputy governor of the People’s
Bank of China (Zhejiang Branch). From April 1984 to June 1992, he
was Deputy Governor of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
(Zhejiang Branch) and President of Hangzhou Financial Management
Cadres College of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China. From
June 1992 to June 1997, he was Governor of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China (Shanghai Municipal Branch) cum
Chairman of Shanghai Shenyin Securities Co., Ltd., Chairman of
International Bank of Paris and Shanghai, Chairman of the Second
Session of Shanghai Banking Association, Vice President of
Shanghai Finance Association, and President of Shanghai Urban
Financial Society. From June 1997 to April 2013, he was
Vice-Chairman of Shanghai International Trust & Investment Co.,
Ltd., Chairman of China United MetLife Insurance Co., Ltd., General
Manager cum Chairman of Shanghai United International Investment
Ltd. (2B B BR % & A 7)), Director of Shanghai Commercial Bank, and
Director of Bank of Shanghai. From June 2013 to present, Mr. Shen
is Chairman cum President of Shanghai Zhan Zheng Equity
Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd. (/B8R IEREREREES B
BBRAT]), Independent Non-executive Director of Huajun
International Group Limited (formerly known as “Huajun Holdings
Limited”) (listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, Stock
Code: 377), Consultant of the Government of Zhoushan New Area in
Zhejiang. In addition, Mr. Shen is a part-time professor at various
universities including Jiaotong University, Central University of
Finance and Economics, and Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics. He is Consultant and Vice-President of Alumni
Association of Central University of Finance and Economics. He has
been a member of the 8th and 9th Session of Shanghai Political
Consultative Conference.
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SIT Sai Hung, Billy, aged 62, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of each of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee on 22 September 2014. He obtained the Degree of
Bachelor of Social Science at The Chinese University of Hong Kong
in 1981, the Diploma in Surveying at The College of Estate
Management in 1996 and the Degree of Master of Law at The
University of Beijing in 2002. Mr. Sit also completed the Merchant
Bank Program at the School of Business Administration of The
University of Washington in 1994. Mr. Sit has been working in the
banking and financial related sector for more than 31 years.

Mr. Sit is currently an executive Director of Power Financial Group
Limited (formerly known as “Jun Yang Financial Holdings Limited”)
(listed on the Main Board of the Exchange, Stock Code: 397).
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The Directors present their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 38
to the consolidated financial statements.

Results

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
pages 59 to 61 to this annual report.

Dividend

No special dividend was paid during the Year (2017: nil). The
Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
Year (2017: nil).

Business Review

Further discussion and analysis of the activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance can
be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 4
to 5 to this annual report and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 6 to 18 to this annual report. These sections form part of
this Directors’ report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

With an aim to become a strong market player in the green
transportation and electric vehicle industry, the Group leads by
example by placing strong emphasis on the environmental impact
caused by the Company’s operation and have established
appropriate environmental management systems tailored to the
nature of our businesses. The Group adheres to a green production
process, including handling three wastes from factories and strictly
complying with national and local environmental laws and
regulations. As for our daily office operations, the Group also
encourages controlling energy consumption in terms of employees’
daily behaviors and equipment management.

Further discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and our
relationship with various stakeholders are covered by a separate
Environmental, Social and Governance report which will be available
at the websites of the Company and the Exchange in or before June
2019.
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Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations
During the Year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the
businesses and operations of the Group, such as the national and
local environmental laws and regulations, such as the % A R £ 51
Bl IRIBIRFE X (literally translated as the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China) and the regulations of
environmental protection of the Zhejiang Province.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers
and Suppliers

Being people-oriented, the Group ensures all staff are reasonably
remunerated and also continues to improve, regularly review and
update its policies on remuneration, benefits, occupational health
and safety. The Group maintains a good relationship with its
customers and suppliers. The Group carries out effective
communication with customers, with an aim to provide better
services for the customers. The Group cooperates with its suppliers
to achieve the synergetic effects.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Capital
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

Convertible Bonds
Details of the convertible bonds are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Reserves

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 64 to 66 to this annual report and note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2018
amounted to HK$411,426,000 (2017: HK$379,595,000). In addition,
the Company’s share premium account may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The approximate percentages in respect of the Group’s sales and
purchases attributable to the major customers and suppliers
respectively during the Year are as follows:

The largest customer BRAEP

Five largest customers in aggregate AREFPA&R
The largest supplier =AM ER

Five largest suppliers in aggregate hRMHEYEET

At no time during the Year have the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had
any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

Directors
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual
report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fei Jie, Chairman

Mr. Fung Chi Kin (appointed on 1 March 2019)

Mr. Ng Chin Ming Stephen, Chief Executive Officer
(resigned on 28 February 2019)

Mr. Zhang Genjiang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Jim Yiu Ming

Mr. Shen Ruolei

Mr. Sit Sai Hung, Billy

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Fung Chi Kin,
Mr. Fei Jie and Mr. Shen Ruolei shall retire and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
to be held on 8 May 2019.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 33 to 37

under the section headed “Biographies of Directors” of this annual
report.
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Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may distribute by way of (i) cash or
(i) shares as may be determined by the board of directors of the
Company from time to time. The profit distribution policy of the
Company is:

(a) Profit distribution policy of the Company shall achieve
continuity, stability and sustainability;

(b) The Company targets a payout ratio with balance on
distribution of profits and profits retained for business
operation and future development;

(c) Profit distribution of the Company shall take into account:
(i) the earnings per share of the Company;

(if) the reasonable return in investment of the investors
and the shareholders in order to provide incentive to
them to continue to support the Company in their
long-term development;

(iif) the financial conditions and business plan of the
Company; and

(iv) the market sentiment and circumstances.

Remuneration Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
reference to the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by
reference to the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee,
having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
the Directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set
out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” of this report.

ERERE

A BB
ADAERABEBE (RBBKD &
b AR R ARA R TEF B R T M
(VB H (B 2 5 A DR » AR5
SR -

(a) ARaHEFMDIRBEEEIRBEEMN
BEMMAEEE

(b) AEBEHERT —FEREE DK E F 8
REBFIAEBNEFEBEFARRER
CHERFEHZRELR

() ARADIKE AR TH&HE :
0] KRR ZEREF
(ii) HEERBRRZABKREMD

HRMABBEEEEFA
NRZRBRER

(iy  ANDE BN R EBEETE
54

vy THERIALBR -

B I8 2R
AREEANMERENLEHMEA T
RBRBERERR  AERENTAL -

ARBEENOME N2 EFHEZESGNER
BREERRBAQAMNELEESE  HARRRK
AEmSRABEmMEE -

ARBIERMBRESE  (FRHEEFERA
BREENER - SHAINFBEERABEH
Petnt 8] —#6 -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 ZF &R

41



42

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
The Board considers the Directors and the Chief Executive Officer to
be the senior management of the Company.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors are set out in note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ interest in Transactions, Arrangement

or Contracts of Significance

Save as disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to which the Company, its holding company, or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the
Year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors, the controlling
shareholders of the Company and their respective associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in a business
which causes or may cause a significant competition with the
business of the Group and any other conflicts of interest which any
such person has or may have with the Group.

Directors’ Service Contracts

All of the executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors have entered into service contracts or letters of
appointment with the Company respectively. The term of
appointment of Mr. Fei Jie, Mr. Fung Chi Kin, Mr. Jim Yiu Ming,
Mr. Shen Ruolei and Mr. Sit Sai Hung, Billy are 1 year from 2
September 2014, 1 March 2019, 22 September 2014, 4 February
2016 and 22 September 2014 respectively; the term of appointment
of Mr. Zhang Genjiang is 3 years from 9 May 2017. The term of
appointment of each Director is renewable by mutual agreement of
both parties unless terminated by not less than three months’ prior
written notice in writing to the other party. All the Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s
annual general meeting at least once every three years in accordance
with the Bye-laws of the Company.
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None of the Directors, including the Directors proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting, has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Permitted Indemnity Provision and Directors’

and Officers’ Liability Insurance

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in Section 469 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)) for the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in
force throughout the Year.

Pursuant to Article 164(1) of the Bye-laws of the Company, the
Directors or other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which may incur in connection with the executive of their
duty provided that the indemnity shall not extend to any matter in
respect of fraud or dishonesty of the above persons. The Company
has arranged Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy of the
Company during the Year.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
entire or primary business of the Company has been entered into or
existed during the Year.
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Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in Contracts

of Significance

To the best knowledge of the Directors, no contract of significance
had been entered into between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and the controlling shareholder of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries during the Year.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company or any

Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2018, the interests of the Directors in the share
capital of the Company which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) (including interests which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or were required, pursuant to Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Exchange were as follows:

Long positions in shares of the Company
(a) Interest in the shares of the Company

Director Capacity/Nature of interest
BEs 53 EaME

Mr. Fei Jie Corporate interest (Note 1)
BARGE NElEm (Hat1)

Mr. Zhang Genjiang
ERIIAEA

Corporate interest (Note 2)
DR (Kat2)

Note 1: These shares are held by associated corporations King Full Inc Limited
and Sure Gold Ventures Limited.

Note 2: These shares are held by an associated corporation Top Bliss Holdings
Limited.
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ERERE

(b) Interest in the shares of associated corporations (b)
Name of Capacity/
Director associated corporation Nature of interest
Es HEHEEZE S tESME
Mr. Fei Jie King Full Inc Limited Corporate interest &

Mr. Zhang
Genjiang
ERIIAES

Note 1: King Full Inc Limited is 90% (45,000,000 shares) directly owned by

BEERAA

Sure Gold Ventures Limited
ETARBRATR
Top Bliss Holdings Limited
ERERBRAF

MIRARESBL2ERAA
(Zhejiang Tong Yin Precious
Metal Operation Company
Limited*) (“Zhejiang Tong
Yin”)

MIBRESBLEEARAA
([HTmaR])

beneficial owner
(Note 1)
NEEZENE &=

wmEANKZ1)
Beneficial owner

(Note 1)
BEmBEBAN M)
Beneficial owner

BB A

Corporate interest
(Note 2)

NEER (Ha2)

Sure Gold Ventures Limited and is 10% (5,000,000 shares) directly
owned by Mr. Fei Jie. Sure Gold Ventures Limited is in turn

wholly-owned by Mr. Fei Jie.

Note 2: Zhejiang Tong Yin is 49% owned byl T2 ZIFREEEGRA

Fl(Zhejiang Zhisin Holding Group Limited*), which is in turn 60%
owned by Mr. Zhang Genjiang. Zhejiang Tong Yin is a subsidiary of the
Company and is thus an associated corporation of the Company.

* for identification purposes only

RIGEEB R B B 2

Number of Percentage of
shares held shareholding

Rz 8B ¥5 B bE il
50,000,000 100%
100 100%

1 100%

N/A (Note 2) 49%

T#EB (W it2)

Hat1 - BEBRIRDFHESARERAF

R BALEEEREB 0% (45,000,0008%
15 ) 10% (5,000,0008% i 1) + M 5E
CRIRBERAFHENLELZEER -

Hiate - WTRBEINT 2 EERERERAF

HHI%  MWIZEEREEERA
AIAERTIEEHEBC0% - HTBEA
ARBIWHEB AR KB AERARRE
B A o
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors or any chief executive of the Company had an interest or
short position in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company and
the Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which he was taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which was
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or pursuant to the Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the
Exchange.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares

As at 31 December 2018, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that, other than the interests disclosed above in respect of
certain Directors, the following shareholders had notified the
Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of the
Company.
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Long Positions 5=
Ordinary shares and underlying shares of the Company  ZKZ\SJZE R R HEIR %
Approximate
percentage of
the existing
issued share
Capacity/ Number of capital of the
Name of shareholder Nature of interest shares held Company
o SANSEE ]
EETIRAR
REZHE 53 e Fis 388 o= A
King Full Inc Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1) 811,950,000 30.35%
EEBRARA ExnEE AN M)
Sure Gold Ventures Limited Corporate Interest (Note 1) 811,950,000 30.35%
EREIREBRAF NAER (Hat1)
Mr. Fei Jie Corporate interest (Note 1) 811,950,000 30.35%
BAEAE NEltEw (Hat1)
Ms. Wu Wen Interest in spouse (Note 2) 811,950,000 30.35%
RELL RECBE R = (A it2)
Top Bliss Holdings Limited Beneficial owner (Note 3) 520,209,327 19.44%
ERERBRAF BEmB A (MiE3)
Mr. Zhang Genjiang Corporate interest (Note 3) 520,209,327 19.44%
BERIGE NEER (B7:23)
Smart Focus Inc Limited Beneficial owner (Note 4) 486,715,358 18.19%
ERBERAT BEnEE A (Hit4)
Trillion Power International Limited Corporate Interest (Note 4) 486,715,358 18.19%
(“Trillion Power”)
Trillion Power International Limited NEEm (K it4)
([ Trillion Power )
HMMNBEBREREER R A Corporate Interest (Note 4) 486,715,358 18.19%
(Huzhou Brighsun Automobile
Co., Ltd.”) (“Huzhou Brighsun”)
MMNEXREEERAA (DAMER]D) NRERR (Kat4)
AT BRKFTEEIRB R A A Corporate Interest (Note 4) 486,715,358 18.19%
(Zhejiang Brighsun New Energy Co., Ltd.*)
(“Brighsun New Energy”)
AT A KRB R A A ([BRCETAER]) Nl (Hat4)
MINERREREESEEGE QA Corporate Interest (Note 4) 486,715,358 18.19%
(Hangzhou Hong Tai Equity
Investment Fund Management
Co., Ltd.”") (“"Hangzhou Hong Tai”)
MINBERBREREECEEGR QA NRER (Kat4)
(TR MEZR])
TN —HEEER X (BRER) Corporate Interest (Note 4) 486,715,358 18.19%
(Hangzhou Yi Bei Investment
Partnership Enterprise (Limited Partnership)*)
(“Hangzhou Yi Bei”)
MMN—BREEREE(BEREXE) DA (Hat4)
(T4 —rE 1)
Mr. Luo Liangshun (“Mr. Luo”) Corporate Interest (Note 4) 486,715,358 18.19%

BRIBEE(TEKE]D

NERE (1 it4)
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Notes:

King Full Inc Limited is 10% directly held by Mr. Fei Jie and the remaining 90%
directly held by Sure Gold Ventures Limited. Sure Gold Ventures Limited is in
turn wholly-owned by Mr. Fei Jie. Accordingly, Sure Gold Ventures Limited and
Mr. Fei Jie are deemed to be interested in the 811,950,000 shares of the
Company held by King Full Inc Limited by virtue of the SFO.

The shares are held by King Full Inc Limited, the entire issued share capital of
which is indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Fei Jie, the spouse of Ms. Wu Wen.
Accordingly, Ms. Wu Wen is deemed to be interested in the entire 811,950,000
shares by virtue of the SFO.

The entire issued share capital of Top Bliss Holdings Limited is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Zhang Genjiang. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Zhang
Genjiang is deemed to be interested in the entire 520,209,327 shares held by
Top Bliss Holdings Limited.

Smart Focus Inc Limited is directly wholly-owned by Trillion Power. Trillion
Power is directly wholly-owned by Huzhou Brighsun, which is directly
wholly-owned by Brighsun New Energy. Brighsun New Energy is directly
wholly-owned by Hangzhou Hong Tai, which is in turn 60% owned directly by
Hangzhou Yi Bei and is 40% owned directly by Mr. Luo.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, no other persons
had any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or otherwise
notified to the Company.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme which has become
effective on 22 December 2010 (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.

*

for identification purposes only
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Share Option Scheme

On 27 May 2015 (the “Date of Grant”), the Company granted share
options (the “Share Options”) to the eligible persons within the Group
(the “Grantees”) pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme
launched on 22 December 2010, subject to acceptance by the
Grantees. The Share Options entitle the Grantees to subscribe for a
total of 15,000,000 ordinary shares with nominal value of HK$0.10
each in the capital of the Company upon exercise of the Share
Options in full. The exercise price of the Share Options granted of
HK$1.17 per share represent the highest of (i) the closing price of
HK$1.17 per share on the Date of Grant; (ii) the average closing
price of HK$1.04 per share for the five business days immediately
preceding the Date of Grant; and (i) the nominal value of HK$0.10
per share. Details of the Grant of Share Options was set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 27 May 2015. 7,500,000
options had been exercised and gross proceeds of HK$8,775,000
was received from exercise of these options. Upon the subdivision of
shares from par value of HK$0.10 each into five subdivided shares of
par value of HK$0.02 each which became effective on 4 May 2016,
the exercise price and the number of outstanding options were
adjusted to HK$0.234 and 37,500,000 options respectively in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Share Option
Scheme. On 18 May 2018, the 37,500,000 options had been
exercised and gross proceeds of HK$8,775,000 was received from
exercise of these options. There are no outstanding share options as
at 31 December 2018.

Details of the Share Option Scheme and the movements in Share
Options granted are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Directors’ Rights to Purchase Shares or

Debentures

Save as the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, at no time
during the Year was the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed

Securities of the Company
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

Connected and Related Party Transactions
During the Year, save for the connected transaction described under
the sub-section headed “Financial Review — Connected Transaction”
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report, the Group has not entered into any significant
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction which
should be disclosed pursuant to the requirement under the GEM
Listing Rules.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

As at the date of this report, based on information publicly available
to the Company and to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float.

Closure of register of members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 3 May 2019 to Tuesday, 8 May 2019, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order
to be eligible to attend and vote at the annual general meeting of the
Company to be held on 8 May 2019, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for
registration with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 2 May 2019.

Corporate Governance

A report on corporate governance of the Company is set out on
pages 19 to 32 under the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” of this annual report.
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Auditors
The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been audited
by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited shall retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as auditors of
the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Fei Jie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B B &t @ F % A RN

Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HL

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINA TRUSTFUL GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Trustful Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 59 to 174,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
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statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we & o

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

PRt EIE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRETEERNAEEMRENEE

Impairment of trade receivables

E 5 e IE

Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial statements

ELRE AR B AE21

The Group has trade receivables, net of allowance for credit Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s
losses recognised, of approximately HK$183,787,000. impairment assessment of trade receivables including:
Management judgement is required in assessing and KMIEBEIEE S E 5 EWKIBFTEE B EGHH
determining the recoverability of trade receivables and ZEiHi2F B4 ¢

adequacy of allowance made.

AEEZLNBERACEEEERBRNEZIREREARD
183,787,000/8 7T ° FE ¥ 1l M B E B 5 FE WK IR &Y AT Y [0 15
Lt iR BB RO R R AR B EEIEL #IH -

In determining whether there is objective evidence of
impairment loss, the Group takes into consideration the
credit history of the customers and the current market
condition which may require management judgement.
RETREFEREFEENTEIER X HES£EEHK
EFNEERELREATR - AlatH 2B IR E M HIE -

Discussing the Group’s procedures on credit
period given to customers with the management;
HEREN® EEEMNTFREGEHREY
BT

Checking, on a sample basis, the aging profile of
the trade receivables as at 31 December 2018 to
the underlying financial records and post
year-end settlements to bank receipts;
BHR2018F12H31E N E 5 E W R IR &R 155
RERBEZEN D B ARS8 #0750 8%
RARITWUIE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter (continued)

PR EIH (5)

FREEIE(F)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(Continued)
BMETEZNMTERRAEEEE(E)

Impairment of trade receivables (continued)

ESEKIE R E ()

China Trustful Group Limited RFEBIZESEBEER A T

Inquiring of management for the status of each
of the material trade receivables past due as at
31 December 2018 and corroborating
explanations from management with supporting
evidence, such as understanding on-going
business relationship with the customers based
on trade records, checking historical and
subsequent settlement records of and other
correspondence with the customers; and
MEREESAN2018F12A31MHE MM T E
RE 5 RWHRIAENMR - WiEBRIER F 8
THREZFNFEEXTHER ERETFZHE
MBENREEECERAMERERHERE
BEEEEEENEE X

Assessing the appropriateness of the expected
credit loss provisioning methodology, examining
the key data inputs on a sample basis to assess
their accuracy and completeness, and challenging
the assumptions, including both historical and
forward-looking information, used to determine
the expected credit losses.
AEEREEEEREEZNEEN MRS
FTEBABBUNGEEEBUENTEL &
RANETRHBEESEENRR (BFEBE KA
EMER) -

We consider the management conclusion to be
consistent with the available information.
BMRREEBNERERFERN —B -



OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Hfth & ¥

EXEAHAMENAE HUEANBREER
FEER  ETEEEREMBEHRERLRMM
B e B SRS ([EhER]) -

BHESEEMBRRNBERL NREEME
o BFT T e ERRETAEANERS
A ©

IEFASEAMBRRME  RANEEEH
BEMER - REWBEET  EEEMLEH
EERBREAMBHRERIRMAEETBIETH
THROBAEENEME  HEUFEEKRE
RERA - ERFRFITAITHTIE - R
RRHEMENAERERRL - LT EH
EEHFE-RUME  RABRFREETM
EDER

EFRERZEENGESUBRRAR
EHEE

EXRAERBEREQTMASHMNEL
B 75 3 15 2 RI AN &8 1 B 6 I 32 B AR T A
REMBRERAMELEEMPBNRER - I
EEEFR /YA INEES] - ER RS
B BBRTFHEANKEFRERMEHRN
BERKRERM -

ERAEGAMBHRERE EFA8NE &
SEFELENEN  YEERBRATIHE
HEBELCEARNER  WRERFELE
REFER BRIAEZAEHR EXEBR
HFEEE  SHBEEMBEENERTR -

ERZBERREEE BEREMBHEERE-
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and

the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

China Trustful Group Limited FEBEIZEE£BERE 2 T

UMM E FEMBRRRIENHEE

ZANER RYHSAVHBRRELEES T
T 7 e 70 B RF 2 88 5R 1  Bhe) BE oK B AR Rt
MEEERFRE AHABREMEROEE
B3R - HMIRBBEREIBIFRARES
IFEMEBBRRES - it 2P RHRE R
EHMBH - RATERARENARRE
ﬁﬁi\‘rm/\iiéj:&%df‘ﬁﬂaﬁ BERE
ERKFNRE  BIERERRE LR
RERPETTHERT - E% BERERBAFRE
FF AR RE 38 3R o 88 SR PR 7T DA ey BRRF S B8 3R 3
o MREGEBRMEMEFKERLERA R
TERREERREFAMBHERAIEL K
REORTE - BB BR SRR B AT AR EE K o

BMRIBEEEBAENETENNIEZ
— RERFEXRHE EEEAZFSABRETR
FEREREE - B

o BRIRFHELRA M B IMER AN RFERE
RMEHMEAHERRAR - FEZ
FRBRTRATESEF URERF
AREEENERABER/REAMNER
REUER - ARBFFSRARSEE B
#MEER REERAKZERA
BREEHlZ b U RBEH I A LAY
B K 5 AR PRt o e Bb R BE 3% 3Rl 10 8 R
MEFNERHERREABRES -

o THREZRFABOAMES - LREE
EMEEF BYUFEEYH BEEE

NEZEGIHERMEBERER -

o FEFAEBRMNREN URESF
PELM S AEMBERARENSRE
o



AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

BEMHBET GEMBRIRENEE

(%)

s RAEEERAUFELERERNS
FOARRE N - XRIBECD ERAENR

ERERLTETRYE BEREREL
LRENBREARFNEHXBERLEFE
ARTEERE - HERMNBERRBE
ATHERE  RMAFTEELBEIRE
FIRFBIBSREM BRI ANERE I
B mMREBRBEETR - RAMERTRM
MER - RPN EREERHEZHE
HBERARAEFSHNERTRE - AW K
REMHBERATEEN BEEETHEA

BRBEEmRES -

o HEREMBHmER (BREEE)WERED
HRBUAR  URGAVB#REKE
BHERREEARZRER -

e B ERERBERIEHEINNS
ENESRBEENERE  UER
HEVMBHREAERERL - RMAAER
B EEMNT BEEENRFIE-
BMARBMNEFERALEL2TE
o

B FIsh (B B38) F|at TR SIS E A B
BUREREFZR (BREMEFABES
BRAEM AR HIREANRK) BEZEE
SETEB -

BRTABERERGRIEN  BRAMD
MFERB TN ERER  ARAARA
524 B B BV SL M 0 B R O L A 3
B RARBRRE S 1 (ER) - BREHER
EITER -
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Yu Chi Fat.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Chi Fat
Practicing Certificate Number: P05467

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019

China Trustful Group Limited FEZZ&EBER A 7
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

ek H
=R

HZE2018F 12831 HI1FF/E

ftt 2 E

o= St

Continuing operations
Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue and other income

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Loss arising in fair value change of
contingent consideration receivable

Finance costs

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year from
continuing operations

Discontinued operation
Loss for the year from discontinued
operation

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive (loss)/income
Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations
during the year

Other comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year

Total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year

FREEER
LN
B E R

E7

HAl WA Re Eo A e
HERDHMAX
TR

R AR ERFE
BEMELZEE
B & R

B BT 1% %t A itk 71
CIEEE1EE3

REFEEEXEHZ
FrigF

ERIEEEER

KEERIEREER
ZFENER

FRiFl

Htv2m (B518) W

HENEFHIHEE
BmZEHE :
FRIFTEBINER

EEZELEZR

FRHEMBEE
(B518) W

FR2E (BHE)
W o5 48 2

2018 2017
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
s FE T FHET
5 215,696 525,269
(139,756) (336,956)

75,940 188,313

6 4177 3,516
(2,057) (1,713)
(55,549) (41,231)
20 - (4,511)
8 (1,915) (4,563)

9 20,596 139,811
11 (6,960) (40,986)
13,636 98,825
10 (4,355) (7,143)
9,281 91,682

(33,468) 25,242

(33,468) 25,042

(24,187) 116,924
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company
— from continuing operations

— from discontinued operation

Non-controlling interests
— from continuing operations

Total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company

— from continuing operations

— from discontinued operation

Non-controlling interests
— from continuing operations

HZE2018E 12831 HI1FF/E
2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
K et FETT FET
FREERT(B5E) :
VIN/NETEZ DN
—REFE
Py 7,315 84,365
—REABKIE
P (4,355) (7,143)
FEE R RE 25
—RERFE
S AR 2 6,321 14,460
9,281 91,682
FRESZE
(E548), W s 48%E -
VIN/NECTEZ 2N
—RERE
4R 2T (23,980) 106,620
—REBKRIE
P (4,355) (7,143)
I 17 AR A 2
—REFE
G 4,148 17,447
(24,187) 116,924

China Trustful Group Limited FEZEEBEER AT



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z22018F 1231 HIFFZ
2018
Notes HK$’000
k23 F#ET
Earnings/(loss) per share BEEN (EHBE) 13

From continuing and discontinued RKEFERERKILE
operations FEEE S
- Basic —E K HKO0.12 cents
0.127#All
— Diluted — s HKO0.12 cents
0.123 1l

2017
HK$000
THET

HK3.66 cents
3.66785 11l
HK3.05 cents
3.057 1

From continuing operations

HK4.00 cents
4.007 1
HK3.32 cents
3.32/81

- Basic — =K HKO0.30 cents
0.307ll

- Diluted —¥E HKO0.29 cents
0.293#1lll

From discontinued operation REBEKRIEEEET

— Basic —®K HK(0.18) cents
(0.18)#&1ll

- Diluted — s HK(0.17) cents
(0.17)# AWl

HK(0.34) cents
(0.34)7 1
HK(0.27) cents
(0.27)7& AL

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

in e BBk

62

At 31 December 2018 R2018%F12H31H
2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
HiaF FETT FAET
Non-current assets FEREEE
Intangible assets | EE 15 7,621 =
Property, plant and equipment M - B KR 16 100,170 88,931
Interest in leasehold land FAE LR 17 19,419 20,964
Deferred tax asset BEIETRIBE E 28 1,599 -
Prepayment for property, plant and M BE & &
equipment 2 BRI RIA 9,600 2,865
138,409 112,760
Current assets RENEE
Inventories ey 19 71,645 33,738
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESsmEE 18 - 3,122
Trade receivables 2 5 EWFIE 21 183,787 381,714
Deposits, prepayments and other e ENHIE
receivables N E b fE YR8 22 271,485 70,517
Amount due from a director JEU —ZEBFIE 23 - 9,018
Amount due from a related company FEU —FE
A& A A 3E 23 117 =
Tax recoverable Al Uk B 7 18 - 771
Cash and cash equivalents He RIBLEEY 24 56,683 293,853
583,717 792,733
Current liabilities RE&RE
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk H b E A FIE 25 21,697 128,955
Contract liabilities EHBEE 25 1,822 =
Secured loan BHEBER 26 - 15,000
Convertible bonds Al ] E 27 - 51,444
Amount due to a director JEN —REBHIE 23 30,000 =
Amount due to a shareholder JEN — & B R TE 23 - 5,438
Amounts due to non-controlling interests JE {5 FE T2 IR 4 25 5K TE 23 122 118
Amounts due to related companies JEAS A& R FRIE 23 - 7,242
Tax payables JFE AT 3R 19,855 43,540
73,496 251,737
Net current assets MEAEFHE 510,221 540,996
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBDERE 648,630 653,756

China Trustful Group Limited FEZEEBEER AT




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF fn & Mk n R

FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2018 R2018F12H31H
2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt it FET FET
Non-current liability ERBHERE
Deferred tax liability EERIBE & 28 - 1,074
Net assets BEFE 648,630 652,682
Capital and reserves BXRGHE
Share Capital f% < 29 53,508 43,024
Reserves #HE 584,218 560,525
Equity attributable to owners EATHBAEGER
of the Company 637,726 603,549
Non-controlling interests FEERR R 10,904 49,133
Total equity WA 648,630 652,682

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised % E 44

BB &K MN2019F3H26H EE =

for issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2019 and signed on & #ERFET)Z  TH NIEERKREE

its behalf by:

Fei Jie
=5

Director

EF

Fung Chi Kin
BER
Director

EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated — BEFt i SR X Shz A B IS AR WA 5 -

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF mEERgHR
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B E20184F 12531 H 1 F /&
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
FATHAAEIER
Share-
based Capital Convertible  Statutory Non-
Share Share Capital Merger  payment Translation contribution ~ bonds  general  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  earnings Total interests equity
HkHE
-3 ThE 43 F3idd i

kx  BBEE AFRE  AHEE  AREE  BEEE TERE  RHHE  -BERE  REERA 4% 4] Ll
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKB'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
fEr  FEr  FEr TEr TEr FEr FEn TEr TEr FEr T TEn TER
(Note g) (Note b) (Note c) (Note d) (Note ¢) (Note f) (Note g) (Note h)
(Wia)  (Wo)  (ic)  (Wido)  (Bie)  (BHr)  (Bdg)  (Win)

At 1 January 2017 R2017E1A18 41,024 163,815 155 1,083 2,565 (13,982) 12,144 9,842 - 9716 226312 31,686 257,998
Profit for the year ERERH - - - - - - - - - 77,022 77,222 14,460 91,682
Other comprehensive income: M 2EME
Bxchange differences arising £ RITERI £5
on translation of foreign EE7EREE
operations during the year - - - - - 22,255 - - - - 22,255 2,987 25,242

Total comprehensiveincome ~ ER2ENEEE

for the year - - - - - 22,255 - - - 17,222 99,477 17,447 116,924
Placement of new shares RENK 2,000 278,000 - - - - - - - - 280,000 - 280,000
Share issuing expenses OEG53 = (2.240) = = = = = = = = (2.240) = (2.240)
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12A31H 43,024 439,575 155 1,033 2,565 8,273 12,144 9,842 - 86,938 603,549 49,133 652,682

China Trustful Group Limited FEZEEBEER AT



Equity attributable to owners of the Company

FATRANE S
Share-
based Capital Convertible ~ Statutory Non-
Share Share Capital Merger  payment Translation contribution bonds general  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interests equity
HRHE
i Thi 43 FiER i
Bx  ROHEE EAEE  AHEE HREE  REEE  TERR  RHHEE  -RER  RERM L] B i)
HK8'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK8'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000
fér  FEr  TEn FAT FAT FAT FET FET T AT &L FAT FAT
(Note &) (Note b) (Note c) (Note d) (Note ¢) (Note f) (Note g) (Note h)
(Weta) (WD) (Wike)  (WEd)  (Wde) (W) Wiy (W)
At January 2018 R2018E1A18
(Originally stated) (B£250) 43,024 439,575 155 1,033 2,565 8,273 12,144 9,842 - 86,938 603,549 49,133 652,682
Impact on initial application ERERBANBRE
of HKFRS 9 b d 7 = = = = = = - - - 15 15 - 15

At Janvary 2018 Restated)  R018E1R1R (MEF) 43004 439575 55108 2565 88 M4 9w - B3 603864 4913 652607

Prot for the year EREH - - - = = = = 5 - 290 290 631 980

Other comprehensive loss 22EER

Exchange differences arisng £ E S £
on translation of foreign EE7ERZEE
operations during the year - - - - - (31,299) - - - (31,295) 2173)  (33,468)
Total comprehensive oss)  ER2E(EHE)/
income forthe year e - - = = - (312%) - - - 290 (83 418 (4187)

Exercise of share options EERE 750 10,590 - - (2,565) - - - - - 8,775 - 8,775

Disposal of subsidlaries WERBRR (Hi41)

(note 41) - - (155 (1,033) - - - - - 1188 - - .

Conversion of convertible FRTRRES

bonds 9,734 53,970 - - - - - (10,652) - - 53,062 - 53,052

Release of deferred taxupon ~ REATRRERM

conversion of convertible RREEHE

bonds (note 28) (Hrizo8) - - - - - - - 810 - - 810 - 810
Dividend paid to BRTEER

non-controling interests ERARE - - - - - - - - - - - (42515) (42,515
Transfer to statutory BRTET-REE

general reserve - - - - - - - - 5,693 (5,693) - - -
Acquisiton of additional WEHERR

interest in a subsidiary ZEINER - - - - = = = = = (140) (140) 138 @

At 31 December 2018 R2018%12A318 53,508 504,135 - - - (23,022) 12,144 - 5,693 85,268 637,726 10,904 648,630

Notes: HaE -

(@) Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the share premium of (@) BB B RE1981FE R AE (BIEE]) - AQRZ
the Company can be used in paying up unissued shares of the Company to be B i (B AT E B HE B AT T AR A RIARR 2 (M R B
issued to members of the Company as fully paid bonus shares. TRRD » WHAREBBAR -

(b) Capital reserve arose from acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries from (b) BN IR B U SR A 2 B B A B9 RE SN

non-controlling interests. It represents the difference between the consideration

paid and the net assets of the relevant companies shared by non-controlling

interests.

xS AN BRI R AR R REE

EZRWER -
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Notes:

()

To rationalise the structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares, the Group undergone a group restructuring which became
effective on 20 December 2010 (the “Reorganisation”). The financial information
of the Group has been prepared as if the group structure intended under the
Reorganisation had always been exist. In connection to the Reorganisation,
merger reserve arose mainly in respect of the followings:

(i) On 16 June 2010 and 20 June 2010 respectively, the Group’s subsidiary,
Powerwell Pacific Limited (“Powerwell Pacific”), issued 752 new shares of
United States Dollar (“USD”) 1 each to the founding shareholders of the
Group at the consideration of USD1 each and issued 44 new shares of
USD1 each, representing 5.5% of the enlarged share capital of Powerwell
Pacific, to a party who was then a non-controlling shareholder of
Powerwell Pacific at a consideration of HK$1,027,000. These have
resulted in an increase in equity of the Group by HK$1,033,000 which was
included in merger reserve; and

(if) The difference between the nominal value of the aggregate share capital of
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Reorganisation over the nominal
value of the shares of the Company issued in exchange for the
subsidiaries.

Share-based payment reserve represents the fair value of services estimated to
be received in exchange for the grant of the relevant share options over the
relevant vesting periods, the total of which is based on the fair value of the share
options at grant date. The amount for each period is determined by spreading the
fair value of the share options over the relevant vesting period (if any) and is
recognised as staff costs and related expenses with a corresponding increase in
the share-based payment reserve.

Translation reserve represents exchange differences relating to the translation of
the net assets of the Group’s foreign operations from their functional currencies
to the Group’s presentation currency (i.e. Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”)) are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
translation reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated in the exchange
reserve are reclassified to retained earnings on the disposal of the foreign
operations.

Capital contribution reserve represents the contribution of inventories from
shareholder to the Group.

Under Hong Kong Accounting Standard 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation,
convertible bonds issued are split into their liability and equity components at
initial recognition by recognising the liability component at its fair value which is
determined using a market interest rate for similar non-convertible debts and
attributing to the equity component the difference between the fair value of the
goods received and the fair value of the liability component. The liability
component is subsequently carried at amortised cost. The equity component is
recognised in the convertible bonds reserve until the convertible bonds are either
converted (in which case it is transferred to share premium) or redeemed (in
which case it is released directly to retained earnings).

Statutory general reserve was established in accordance with the relevant rules of
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and regulations and the article of
association of respective companies of the Group. The PRC companies are
required to transfer certain of their net profits, as determined under the approval
by the Board to statutory general reserve.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ma

CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before income tax from
continuing operations
Loss before income tax from
discontinued operation
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of interest in leasehold land
Amortisation of intangible assets
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of trade receivables
Loss arising in fair value change of
contingent consideration receivable
Interest income
Written-off of property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Write-down of obsolete inventories

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Increase in trade receivables,
deposits, prepayments and other receivables
(Increase)/decrease in amount due from
a related company
Decrease/(increase) in amount due from
a director
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables

Increase in contract liabilities

Increase in amounts due to non-controlling
interests

Decrease in amounts due to related companies

Cash used in operations
Tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities
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2 22018 12H31H IFF/Z
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
20,596 139,811
(4,355) (7,143)
1,915 4,563
14,410 13,816
480 467
145 =
11,087 =
- 4,511
(2,016) (1,134)
242 1,295
2,135 =
- 275
44,639 156,461
(41,835) 14,263
(40,236) (322,075)
(117) 126
9,018 (18)
(100,767) 65,955
1,822 =
10 4
(7,242) (2,896)
(134,708) (88,180)
(28,011) (10,034)
(162,719) (98,214)
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Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
through profit or loss

Prepayment for purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceed from exercise of share options
Proceeds from placement of new shares
Advance from a director

Repayment to a shareholder

Repayment of secured loan

Dividend paid to non-controlling interests
Interest paid

Share issuing expenses

Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the reporting period

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the reporting period
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2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
Fi&T FET
(31,535) (2,581)
(8,036) =
984 3

- (3,358)

3,375 =
(9,600) =
1,020 =
2,016 1,134
(41,776) (4,802)
8,775 =

- 280,000
30,000 =
(5,438) =
(15,000) =
(42,515) =
(307) (900)

- (2,240)
(24,485) 276,860
(228,980) 173,844
293,853 127,722
(8,190) (7,713)
56,683 293,853




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018

GENERAL

China Trustful Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda on 14 June 2010 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
King Full Inc Limited, Top Bliss Holdings Limited and Smart
Focus Inc Limited are substantial shareholders of the Company.
The Company’s registered office is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda. The
Company’s principal place of business is located at Units
2610-2611, 26/F, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares were listed on the GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 26
January 2011.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in HKS,
which is also the functional currency of the Company and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$’000) except
otherwise indicated.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries (together
with the Company referred to as the “Group”) are the retail and
wholesale of luxury brand silverware, silver utensils and luxury
goods in the PRC (the “Silverware Business”) and the research
and development, manufacture and sale of rechargeable
batteries, electric vehicles and related products and provision
of related services (the “Electric Vehicle Business”). The Group
was also engaged in the provision of sourcing and procurement
solutions to customers for production of watches, costume
jewelries, and display and packaging products (the “Sourcing
Business”) which were discontinued since 18 May 2018.

Details of the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the
following new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations (collectively referred to as the “new and revised
HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”), which are effective for the Group’s
financial year beginning from 1 January 2018. A summary of
the new and revised HKFRSs applied by the Group is set out
as follows:
HKAS 28 (Amendments) As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

HKAS 40 (Amendments) Transfers of Investment Property

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

HKFRS 4 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Except as described below, the application of other new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and financial positions for
the current and prior periods and/or on the disclosures set out
in the notes to consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and the related consequential amendments to
other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for 1)
the classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities, 2) expected credit losses (“ECL”) for financial
assets and 3) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to instruments
that have not been derecognised at 1 January 2018 (date of
initial application) and has not applied the requirements to
instruments that have already been derecognised at 1 January
2018. The difference between carrying amounts at 31
December 2017 and the carrying amounts at 1 January 2018
are recognised in the opening retained earnings and other
components of equity, without restating comparative
information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared under
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9 are
disclosed in note 3.

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9

The table below illustrates the classification and measurement
of financial assets and financial liabilities and other items
subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at the date of
initial application, 1 January 2018.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

R RGBT ERUBREE
AI(TEEMBREER ) (&)

(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued) EEMBREENEORLSHT A ()
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
carrying carrying

amounts at amounts at
31 December 1 January
2017  Reclassification Remeasurement 2018
20178 R2018%
12A318 1A18
REEEEH REFEME
BR %305 B Ho5
RENREE ENNE EfitE  BHNKEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
Financial assets at fair value through BAEEHIABERZ
profit and loss THEE
Available-for-sale financial assets (note a) A HESREE (Wita) 3,122 (3,122) - -
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss BATEFABR S REE = 3122 15 3,187

The following table summarises the impact of transition to
HKFRS 9 on retained earnings at 1 January 2018:

TRFMN201851 A1 B BEEE B8
EHEERFEIORERBRANNTLE

Retained

earnings

REEF

HK$°000

FET

At 1 January 2018 (originally stated) R2018F1 818 (REZF) 86,938
Remeasurement of unlisted debt securities BEHFETERN2018F1A1B A Y E

measured at FVTPL at 1 January 2018 FSTABRTENIELMEBES 15

At 1 January 2018 (restated) M2018F1 818 (K E5H) 86,953

China Trustful Group Limited FEZZ&EBER A 7



APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)
Notes:

(a) Available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets

The unlisted debt securities with the carrying amount of approximately
HK$3,122,000 were reclassified from AFS financial assets to financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”). This is because even
though the Group’s business model is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, the cash flows of these investments do not
meet the HKFRS 9 criteria as solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

There was no material impact on the amounts recognised in relation to
these assets from the application of HKFRS 9.

(b) Impairment under ECL model
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure ECL
which uses a lifetime ECL for all trade receivables. Except for those which
had been determined as credit impaired under HKAS 39, the remaining
balances are grouped based on past due analysis. The Group has
therefore estimated the expected loss rates for the trade receivables on
the same basis.

Except for those which had been determined as credit impaired under
HKAS 39, ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost, including
deposits paid, compensation from profit guarantee, other receivables,
amount due from a director and bank balances, are assessed on
12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) basis as there had been no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

(c) Financial liabilities
There is no impact on the Group’s accounting for financial liabilities
previously carried at amortised costs remained to be measured at
amortised cost under HKFRS 9.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS
11 Construction Contracts and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying this standard recognised
at the date of initial application, 1 January 2018. Any difference
at the date of initial application is recognised in the opening
retained earnings and comparative information has not been
restated. Furthermore, in accordance with the transition
provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply the
standard retrospectively only to contracts that are not
completed at 1 January 2018. Accordingly, certain comparative
information may not be comparable as comparative information
was prepared under HKAS 18 Revenue and HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and the related interpretations.

As a result of the changes in the Group’s accounting policies,
as explained below, except for the reclassification of the
contract liabilities from trade deposits received of approximately
HK$789,000 at initial application, HKFRS 15 was generally
applied without restating any other comparative information.
The application of HKFRS 15 in the current period does not
result in any impact on the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and/or disclosures set out in
the consolidated financial statements except that, the Group
has applied the following accounting policies on revenue with
effect from 1 January 2018.

HKFRS 15 requires that revenue from contracts with customers
be recognised upon the transfer of control over goods or
services to the customer. As such, upon application, this
requirement under HKFRS 15 resulted in immaterial impact to
the consolidated financial statements as the timing of revenue
recognition on sales of goods and commission and consultancy
fee services is nearly unchanged. Thus, there was no impact on
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position as of 1
January 2018.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(Continued)

The Group recognises revenue from the following major
sources which arise from contracts with customers:

° Sales of goods

o Commission and consultancy fee income

Information about the Group’s performance obligations and the
accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 15 are

disclosed in notes 3.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
(Amendments)

HKAS 19 (Amendments)
HKAS 28 (Amendments)
HKFRS (Amendments)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)
HKFRS 9 (Amendments)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17

HK (IFRIC) - Int 23

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement!

Long-term interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures!

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle!

Definition of a business?

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’
Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®
Leases!

Insurance Contracts*

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

R RGBT ERUBREE
AI(TEEMBREER ) (&)

FEMBREEBISMAGHEERE
Kz (&)
AEEBNATETERRERREETP
BRI s

2o
it

\

N
A

e RMERERERA

A AR T 0 IR AE B R A PR B B T
W RAF 1SRRG S RENE
R I SE R -

AREEY EIT R EM T 52 B M IE R K
ERHFET REETEBHHREE
Al -

BRGHENRIRR BALER
BREEAFH

CHEY

BRGNS0 BB BRAER
CHEY)

BREHENFES NEERARAELRIRY
(BE1%) '

ERMBREEN  BEMBHREEN0165E

0175 BB FRHE
EERBREREN  EBIER
EREACHES
BEEMBREEN  AEEREZRAMETHE
F9%: (B X)
REMBRELEL RAZEABREAARAEDR
FIORRERSH  ErHCEELEHTES
BRI £28% (BT A)
REMBEREEL  HE
£16%
EARBREEN  REAH
F17%
Tk (BREBRE AEHEENTREM
REZE®)
-REE23%

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 ZF R

75



76

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

2 Effective for business combination for which the acquisition date is on or
after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after 1
January 2020.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS
17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback
transactions to be determined based on the requirements of
HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the relevant asset
should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes
requirements relating to subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be
recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is
initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands
for owned use while other operating lease payments are
presented as operating cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS
16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated
into a principal and an interest portion which will be presented
as financing cash flows by the Group.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

At 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately HK$5,904,000
as disclosed in note 32. A preliminary assessment indicates
that these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease.
Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all
these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term
leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of approximately HK$1,323,000 as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on
the definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such
deposits are not payments relating to the right to use the
underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such
deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits paid would be considered as
additional lease payments and included in the carrying amount
of right-of-use assets.

The application of new requirements may result in changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above.
The Group intends to elect the modified retrospective approach
for the application of HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise
the cumulative effect of initial application to opening retained
earnings without restating comparative information.

Except disclosed above, the directors do not anticipate that the
application of other new and revised HKFRSs will have a
material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
financial positions.

R RGBT ERUBREE
AI(TEEMBREER ) (&)

FEEMBRERAB1REE (&)
BEAN - MR E ERIF 1657 Z KK
BIZRKE -

MR2018F12A31H » N&E BB 7T A &
Y 4% & F B AR £95,904,00058 7T (40
RA B IS IRR BT ES2FT W) o WL AT
HETZSELHERATHENTEE - &
BEBMERE LR F1651E  AEH
B EZSHERRFEAEEERS
EafE KIEEFAREERRNCHAE
B o

gHN AERERERB /N ARLHEE
B #91,323,0008 T2 E A T A%
MEkED BRAREBGFEMNET
¥ o MBEABYBHRE LR F16REEN
ROER > LREeWIFEEREBE
ERNABONR - Eit - BlIREH
FREER THRBELBENA AR
HEDFRBBIEENK - EF AR
EHEEZESNARSRRRBIEEN
FoUAACHBEENREER -

FEFAFN 2 E Al e B B E X P 95 E
2IRBBEEMED - ARE (FRA
HA)BEERRKETENEZERABTEY
B EERIE165% - I HHER B RER
HENRBBNNRATE B8
SILLBE KL o

BEXPEEESN  EEEY  BAA
1t ¥ 5T R ARAE 7] & 08 B 765 3 5 2E Al A
SHAKEMBEEERMBRREKRE

2/ 28
&

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 ZF R

77



78

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which is a
collective term that includes all applicable individual
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

3.2 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 Basis of preparation (Continued) 3.2

FEREHBREE(F)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within
the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS
36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)
3.3 Basis of consolidation

FEREHBREE(F)

3.3 ZEE%E

80

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in profit or loss from the date
the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.3

3.4

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or
loss on disposal recognised in profit or loss is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets, less liabilities of the subsidiary. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as required/
permitted by applicable HKFRS standards).

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is
able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are present:
power over the investee; exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee; and the
ability to use its power over the investee to affect the
amount of the investor’s returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there
may be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
receivable.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)

3.5 Property, plant and equipment 3.5 ¥ BERRE

82

Property, plant and equipment including building held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can
be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to
be obtained from the use of the property, plant and
equipment, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional
cost of that asset.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction, which is stated at cost
less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalised
borrowing costs on related borrowing funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.5

3.6

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Buildings 5%
Leasehold improvements 5%-33%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Plant and machinery 5%-20%
Motor vehicles 20%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Interest in leasehold land

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “interest in
leasehold land” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.7

3.8

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets
are estimated individually, when it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual CGU, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of CGU for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.8

3.9

3.10

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
(Continued)

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a CGU)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on
first-in-first-out or weighted average basis as appropriate
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as cost of sales in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as cost of sales in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is offset
against the cost of sales in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. IXEE:HHEHE£E)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued) 3.10 &R T H (&)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1 January
2018. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets at FVTPL) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as other
revenue and other income.

Classification of subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Classification of subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9) (Continued)
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
measured subsequently at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets; and

° the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired for the purpose of selling in the
near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Classification of subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9) (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Amortised cost and effective interest method
Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired. For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes interest earned on the financial asset and is
included in the “other revenue and other income”
line item.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables, deposits paid,
other receivables, amount due from a related company
and cash and cash equivalents). The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting period. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables without significant financing component. The
ECL on these assets are assessed individually for debts
with significant balances or collectively using a provision
matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of
a default occurring since initial recognition.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9)
(Continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the end of the reporting
period with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular financial
instrument;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9)
(Continued)

U

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collateral held by
the Group).
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9)
(Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

(i)

(a)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9)
(Continued)

(iv)

v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of the default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective risks
of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9)
(Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

When ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater
for cases where evidence at the individual instrument
level may not yet be available, the financial
instruments are grouped as below:

° Nature of financial instruments;
° Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at FVTPL, AFS financial assets
and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is (i) contingent consideration that may be
paid by an acquirer as part of a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 applies, (ii) held for trading, or (iii) it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as AFS or are not classified as (a) loans and
receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c)
financial assets as at FVTPL.

Dividend on AFS equity instruments are recognised in
profit or loss when the Group has right to receive the
dividends established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and
must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
investments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Loans and receivables (including
trade receivable, deposits paid, other receivables, amount
due from a director and cash and cash equivalents) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period
as well as observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets that are carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)
3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

FEREHBREE(F)

3.10 M T A (&)

98

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale debt investments, impairment
losses are subsequently reversed through profit or loss, if
an increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as Financial liabilities or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)
3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

FEREHBREE(F)

3.10 &Rt TH (&)

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a
financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when
the continuing involvement approach applies, are
measured in accordance with the specific accounting
policies set out below.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables
(excluding receipt in advance and trade deposits
received), secured loan, convertible bonds, amount due
to a shareholder, amounts due to non-controlling interests
and amounts due to related companies are subsequently
measured subsequently at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Convertible bonds

The component parts of the convertible bonds are
classified separately as financial liability and equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument. A conversion option that will be
settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component (including any embedded non-equity
derivatives features) is estimated by measuring the fair
value of similar liability that does not have an associated
equity component.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

3.11

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole.
This is recognised and included in equity, net of income
tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In
addition, the conversion option classified as equity will
remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised,
in which case, the balance recognised in equity will be
transferred to share premium. Where the conversion
option remains unexercised at the maturity date of the
convertible bonds, the balance recognised in equity will
be transferred to retained earnings. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration
of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included in
the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised
over the period of the convertible bonds using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit
or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.12

3.13

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably. When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Group. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.14 Revenue and other income

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application
of HKFRS 15 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or
as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the
same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance
as the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates and enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9.
In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.14 Revenue and other income (Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. A contract asset
and a contract liability relating to a contract are accounted
for an presented on a net basis.

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to
each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at a point in
time when control of the products has transferred, being
when the products are delivered to the customers and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the product and collectability
of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

Services rendered
Revenue for services rendered mainly includes design and

consultancy services and is recognised at a point in time
when services are rendered.

104  China Trustful Group Limited FElZ=&EBER A 7

3.

EETBREE (&)

3.14 WA R H s ()

BHABEAKENEAEFK
RezREGEREEINHM) M
AERAZEFEEEMmARE 2
B - HAWEABZANEERS
HMABETIRFREEARNET -

REEBB-BENEEZAN
ME  AERERESB L EEEE
BRXBERIEEEBHEME -

KB HESmZ WA E i
rEEE (ERXNTERZ
) ARUEREFETFEN
EmIABTEETEEAEET
BE Ui (o] 4 B R M R 0B 2 B RERR

IR
KERERBEZWATEBRR

At R AARTS - W IR RS 2 B



3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.14 Revenue and other income (Continued)

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Government grant

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods and services supplied, net of value-added tax,
returns, rebates and discounts.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides
with the time when the products are delivered to
customers and title is passed.

Revenue from commission income is recognised upon
certain level of sales is achieved.

Revenue from consultancy services income is recognised
when the services are rendered.

Revenue from freight income is recognised when the
services are rendered.

Interest income from financial asset is accrued on a time
basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.15

3.16

Leasing
All leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognises as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit obligations

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Retirement benefit obligations Payments to Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) and
state-managed retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, with the
employers’ contributions subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000. The Group’s contributions
to the scheme are expensed as incurred are vested in
accordance with the scheme’s vesting scales. Where
employees leave the scheme prior to the full vesting of the
employer’s contributions, the amount of forfeited
contributions is used to reduce the contributions payable
by the Group.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.16 Employee benefits (Continued)

Retirement benefit obligations (Continued)

The employees employed by the Group’s subsidiaries in
PRC are members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the government of the PRC. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specific
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefits schemes
operated by the government of the PRC is to make the
specified contributions under the schemes.

Share-based payment expenses

For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share-based payment reserve will be transferred to
retained earnings.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (Continued)

3.17

3.18

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during that period, in which case the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in a
separate component of equity under the heading of
“translation reserve” (attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).

Borrowings costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

108 China Trustful Group Limited FEIZEEEER A 7

EETBREE (&)

3.17

3.18

yh i

MRS E R & EE K&
= AZEREE MJ/XM\E’]
Mwwﬁkﬁmx%ﬂ&x

H 7 RATHE R R ﬁiﬁ
- M%Mﬂﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ&
BZRITEXSEHHRE - RATE
INETIERIEEEIAR - TR
AVTEEETEAZRTEXRERN
BE o BT KA EAINEIIE
MIEERIEEBASHKRE o

REEREFREEEHEAME
ERERZE  REELHEER
m AR ©

REBFAMBHERME - AEH
BIRBHNEERABERERS
PRZBRTEXBRESAKEEN
2HEE (ET) - WARFAX
HERZMFEFHERSRE - RIE
ZHEEX KBNS RZBER
T BAERARRZBEHZER - f
EENELZE(E) ITRNEM
EEEERER TR ER[HRE
fw] BT 2B B0 Rt (BE
RIEER D (ER)) -

BERE

ERRAMSE BRILEERE—
BEREHETEAFELRERZX
HEZARBEREBEEZRBENRA - J)
FARFEEZRA  BEZFE
EARLCAAEERER SRR
HERLE -

BT 2L 12 B A 15 5 2 2
R B S TR -



3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.19 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before income
tax’ as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.19 Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax laws and tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.20 Segment reporting

3.21

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or
geographic area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, which
comprises the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation and the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the
disposal, of the assets or disposal group constituting the
discontinued operation.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (Continued)
3.22 Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member);

(i)  both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party;
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.22 Related parties (Continued)

(Continued)

(b)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources,
services or obligation between the Group and a related
party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close family members of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements,
the directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Assessment of economic useful lives of fixed assets and
intangible assets

Fixed assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives are
depreciated and amortised over their economic useful lives.
The assessment of estimated useful lives is a matter of
judgement based on the experience of the Group, taking into
account factors such as technological progress, changes in
market demand, expected usage and physical wear and tear.
Useful lives are periodically reviewed for continued
appropriateness. Due to long lives of assets, changes to the
estimates used can result in variations in their carrying
amounts.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment,
interest in leasehold land and intangible assets

The Group test whether property, plant and equipment, interest
in leasehold land and intangible assets suffered any impairment
whenever an impairment indication exists. In accordance with
note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, an impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount
of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, it is reasonably
possible, based on existing knowledge, that outcomes within
the next financial period that are different from assumptions
could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment, interest in leasehold land and
intangible assets.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining provision for
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises tax liabilities based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in which
such determination is made.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical experience
on selling goods of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of change in market condition. The directors will
reassess the estimations at the end of each reporting period.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on management
judgement as groupings of various debtors that have similar
loss patterns. The provision matrix is based on the Group’s
historical default rates taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable available without
undue costs or effort. At the end of each reporting period, the
historical observed default rates are reassessed and changes in
the forward-looking information are considered. In addition,
trade receivables with significant balances and credit impaired
are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables
are disclosed in note 35.

REVENUE
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers:

A FEEERZERRIE(F)

BSEKMRIEMTANEEHERAE

AEEERBRBEEGEE S BRI
MBHEEEE BEHEXENEEEY
AERBUBBREA 2 TREHAHERZ
HIE - BBREERAREZELEN

BHEAESZAEBRXFZAENE
R - REJRERR  AIBRZELE
HEGEHFE  AEEAREER 2
HE) o IS EAERBRERREREE
BEZE 5 REFAS ERETEME
BB -

BHEERRRABRZRMGAEDY
£ FRBHNEERBERAKEESE
WK IR ) B R BT FESE I R ©

L ON
KEEZEFPAEHBRAZDY

2018 2017
Continuing operations FIEEEET HK$°000 HK$’000
FiET FET
Type of goods or services ERSRBER
Sales of goods: BEmigE -
- Watches —$E - 11,703
— Silverware — iR 22 38,498 46,226
— Electric vehicles and related products —BE)TERIEEER 106,824 387,439
— Porcelain — & 3,034 11,323
Commission and consultancy fee income He kFERERA 67,340 68,578
215,696 525,269
2018
HK$°000
F&T
Timing of revenue recognition a2 Wy 23 Z B [
At a point in time A — B ) Bh 215,696

Transaction allocated to the remaining performance
obligation for contracts with customers

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 to its revenue such that the Group does not
disclose information about revenue that the Group will be
entitled to when it satisfies the remaining performance
obligations under the contracts as all contract works have an
original expected duration of one year or less.
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OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Hftb Wr N\ R H 1t W 2=

2018 2017

Continuing operations BIEEEETR HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET

Interest income BN PN 1,960 980
Foreign exchange gain PE 7 W 461 1,264
Government grant (note) BT B (1 7E) 962 954
Sundry income HETE U A 794 318
4,177 3,516

Note: Government grants of approximately HK$962,000 (2017: HK$954,000)
have been received during the year ended 31 December 2018. There were
no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these government
grants.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The management reviews the Group’s internal reporting for
performance assessment between segments and resource
allocation. The management has determined the operating
segments based on business lines (products and services) and
geographical areas. The management has determined that the
Group is organised into two main operating segments: (i)
Silverware Business; and (ii) Electric Vehicle Business. The
management measures the performance of the segments
based on their respective segment results.

The principal products and services of each of these operations
are as follows:

Silverware Business
goods in the PRC
RIS

Electric Vehicle Business

Kiat - B E=2018F12A31H LFE - BEUEZ K
Ji # B) £9962,0007 7T (20174F : 954,000/
TL) ° 5% IR R B 3 A8 R 1A AR EE AR A 1
HRBRER -

SEEF
BEERNAKRBHORTREAEDF
RERSRPHRBETHE - EBE
BER (Em MR R8I0 8En
M- ERECHRESAREXBED AWM
BEEELEDE : (VRBF|ER + R()E
BIEEL - EREREESERAND
MEEEESEDMORE -

ZEXRBEANEIRERRRBAT -

Retail and wholesale of luxury brand silverware, silver utensils and luxury

RPBETEMMBEZRERE REEANEEZR

Research and development, manufacture and sale of rechargeable batteries,

electric vehicles and related products and provision of related services

BHTEED

Mz AERHERED THAIERBHERLRHEBERS
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

An operating segment regarding provision of sourcing (including
product design, product development, raw material sourcing
and production outsourcing) and procurement (including quality
and assurance control, logistics and delivery handling service)
solutions to customers for production of watches, costume
jewelries, and display and packaging products (referred to as
“Sourcing Business”) was discontinued in the current year
which are described in more detail in note 10.

Segment revenue and segment results

Information regarding the Group’s reportable operating
segments including the reconciliations to profit before income
tax are as follows. The segment information reported below
does not include any figures for the discontinued operation.

SEREHE (2)

MEFIREEEEE - AEKRE KRS
BRERGNERES (REEMRKT  E
M BEMEREREEINH) RE
B(eRE2 lERES mREERRA
B BATR(BAIERES X))
PEESBRAFERIELE  ZEB
EF MR M FE10 o

SEBAR D EBER
ERAAEERRELENHNEN (B
BHRASHAENNER) T - TX
FIEMDBERTERERELER
BRI 8% -

Electric
Silverware Vehicle
Business Business Total
EERE
SRBTEFR R st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEITT F#ET FETT
Year ended 31 December 2018 #H F2018%
128318 ILEE
Reportable segment revenue Al 3R 4 o 2P U A
(note (a)) (Wiz(a) 41,532 174,164 215,696
Reportable segment profit Al R E D 2 m A 16,690 22,054 38,744
Interest income LB M A 1,960
Corporate income and expenses TERANRX (20,108)
Profit before income tax B& B 4% % B iz F 20,596
Adjusted earnings before SEHEERF S - BIE -
interest, tax, depreciation and e R 8 Al
amortisation (note (b)) B (7)) 17,356 35,327 52,683
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEEE(E)

Segment revenue and segment results (Continued) DEBU AR P ERELE (F)
Electric
Silverware Vehicle
Business Business Total
BE)RE
HRES TS E @t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=2017%F12H31H
IEFE
Reportable segment revenue EEE N
(note (a)) (K1t (a)) 69,252 456,017 525,269
Reportable segment profit Al ¥R & 5 30 m 40,368 122,731 163,099
Interest income B YA 980
Loss arising in fair value change of FEU s AR EB AT E
contingent consideration receivable FBEmEEZERE (4,511)
Corporate income and expenses PERARRAL (19,757)
Profit before income tax & P15 75 B i A 139,811
Adjusted earnings before interest, RIFARERAE - A -
tax, depreciation and amortisation TERHEIMAERN
(note b)) (B b)) 41,615 135,054 176,669
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the KESBr @A RRERNEBN S
same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment results Blﬁ HepHMEBESSBRRZ
represent profit earned by each segment without allocation of A ISR S - FEH A
interest income, loss arising in fair value change of contingent REQAFESDMEEZEE - FRIT
consideration receivable, central administrative income and BWA R (BEIEERA R
expenses including partial other revenue and other income, HTzHEMmimREMKA - S
directors’ remuneration and partial finance costs under the e RkBoOBMEKAK) - Wt EITEZ
heading of “corporate income and expenses”. This is the WTEEEERT D BRERD B M
measure reported to management for the purposes of MR e
performance assessment between segments and resource
allocation.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DBEE(E)
DPEEREE

Segment assets and liabilities
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments assets
and liabilities are as follows:

At 31 December 2018

Reportable segment assets

Unallocated assets

Total assets

Reportable segment liabilities

Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

At 31 December 2017

Reportable segment assets

Unallocated assets

Total assets

Reportable segment liabilities

Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

BT
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
RECEER BREGELE
Electric
Silverware Vehicle Sourcing
Business Business Business
EBRE ERES
HBEH £%5 £%5
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET
12018%12H318
NRENPEE 21,161 689,736 710,897 - 710,897
FOREE 11,229
BEE 722,126
TREHBEE 1,754 21,979 23,733 - 23,733
FOEEE 49,763
BaR 73,496
120178128318
RENPEE 86,127 633,401 719,528 44,227 763,755
FOREE 141,738
BEE 905,493
DEERE )Y 4,361 174,201 178,562 7,607 186,169
FoRERE 66,642
BEE 252,811
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7.
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purpose of monitoring performance assessment
between segments and resource allocation, all assets and
liabilities are allocated to the reportable segments other than
those that are for central administrative purposes including
partial property, plant and equipment, prepayment for property,
plant and equipment, available-for-sale financial assets, partial
deposits, prepayments and other receivables, tax recoverable,
partial cash and cash equivalents, partial other payables,
amount due to a director, amount due to a shareholder, partial
amounts due to non-controlling interests, secured loan, tax
payables and deferred tax liability.

Other segment information
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or
segment assets:

SEREF (45)

SMEERER(Z)
REEDMRERDEREMFERE
MmE  BRIEFRITHREN (BEIFSD
BNHE AHEESREE B0k
& BENREREBEEIE - A E
HIE - HoRERACEFEY HHH
NI BN —RESFFIA - BN
—BIRRFIA ~ B RN IR SR
B BHERER  BABKEEEREA
BRE)EIN MAEERABEANSKER

D o

Rib S WA
AR ES BEHRH PEAEOSE

Electric

Silverware Vehicle
Business Business Unallocated Total
EHRE
RETET £ KpE st
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FETT FETT FETT
Year ended 31 December 2018 EF20185F
12A31BILEE
Interest income FEUWA - - 1,960 1,960
Finance costs & kA - - 1,915 1,915
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESEH - 145 - 145
Amortisation of interest in leasehold land ey - 480 - 480
Depreciation of property, plant ME BENERETE
and equipment 666 12,843 795 14,304
Written-off of property, plant and equipment ¥1% - & M & & i 88 - - 242 242
Additions to non-current assets (note (c))  FERBEERNE (Hit(c) 868 37,553 4,015 42,436
Allowance for credit losses in respect of B HERZEZ EEE
trade receivables BREHE - 11,087 - 11,087
Year ended 31 December 2017 HZE20175
12A31BLLEE
Loss arising in fair value change WS ARBATEES
of contingent consideration receivable £ 2 B8 = - 4,511 4,511
Interest income B WA - - 980 980
Finance costs A& A AN - 3,663 900 4,563
Amortisation of interest in leasehold land ~ FH& + it #E %5 8 §5 - 467 - 467
Depreciation of property, plant WE BERRERE
and equipment 1,247 11,856 374 13,477
Written-off of property, plant and equipment 1% - & M % & 8 937 350 8 1,295
Additions to non-current assets (note (c))  ERBEENE (A1) = 2,187 352 2,539

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 ZF R



SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Other segment information (Continued)
Notes:

(@) Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated from
external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in the current year
(2017: nil).

(b) Adjusted earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation is
also a measurement basis regularly reviewed by the directors in
performance assessment between segments and resources allocation.
This measurement basis is consistent with that of the segment results
except that finance costs, amortisation of intangible assets, depreciation
of property, plant and equipment and amortisation of interest in leasehold
land are not included in the adjusted earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation.

(c) Addition to non-current assets represents additions to property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets.

Geographical information

Since over 90% of the Group’s revenue and operating profit
were generated in the PRC for both years and over 90% of the
Group’s non-current assets were located in the PRC, no
geographical segment information in accordance with HKFRS 8
Operating Segments is presented.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers for the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017 contributing over 10% of the total revenue of
the Group are as follows:

Reporting segments

BETH

SEREF (&
Hith 5 &R &

(@ EXPRERNDHBEAEIDBESKA - K
REFZARE D APFEHE (20175 : &) -

(b) EFEUBHLRAERNE TR HER
B AN ERTEHEIBHRRALER
DEMFTEEE - B BEEEDRER
— B ERRERAE TR TEREH
RIAMNTEERERAS  BVEE#RE -9
¥ BERRENEREELOEREE -

© ERBDEEREEME BERIKBRER
BREERNE -

BB A
ey {47 274 52 L2 3890% Y A ¢
EERFIRATE - U RAREBES
Q0% IR B & E LA E - HALIE
5T & V5 B 7 9B 65 A OB AT 5
AP 5 B AR -

FTEEFEH

P RE E2018%F k2017612 H31H
IEFEAAREBFERBUKAI0% A EHY
BERIATE ¢

Customer A (Note i) Electric Vehicle Business

BEAK i) BE)REER
Customer B Electric Vehicle Business
£FB EHAELY
Customer C (Note ii) Electric Vehicle Business
B PC(H i) BE)ABEE

Except as disclosed above, no other customers contributed
10% or more of the Group’s total revenue for both years.

Notes:
(i) Revenue derived from Customer A did not contribute 10% or more to the

Group’s total revenue during the year ended 31 December 2018.

(if) Revenue derived from Customer C did not contribute 10% or more to the
Group’s total revenue during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$000
F#ET TET

- 258,954
111,564 173,525

35,822 =

Br EXETIEEEIN RREFE - &

Bt R BAERBUATERI0%k A

EWER -

i) HZE2018F12A31BLEFE ' REFFAX
WA B AR EEERATERI0%K A LB
B o
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FINANCE COSTS

8. MIEAME

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FET
Continuing operations FHEGCEET
Interest on secured loan BRBERZFE 307 900
Imputed interest on convertible bonds AR ES 2 EFE
(note 27) (Htiz27) 1,608 3,663
1,915 4,563
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. RGBT
Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging: Br PTG A0 AT M A FIBR A T B IHIR E
= ¢
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&T FEIT
Continuing operations FHESEET
Auditors’ remuneration: % B &
— Audit service — F %R 610 450
- Non-audit services —EBE L RTE 224 145
834 595
Cost of inventories sold HEFEKA 132,986 332,762
Amortisation of interest in leasehold land & & s 8 480 467
Amortisation of intangible assets A E#E 145 -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %1% - HE MR EITE 14,304 13,477
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEDE -  BE K&
and equipment iz EE 2,135 -
Allowance for credit losses in respect B REWHIE 2
of trade receivables EEBERE 11,087 -
Operating lease charges in respect B RAEFH
of land and buildings KERET 4,778 4,785
Employee benefit expenses EERNMAXZ (B
(including directors’ remuneration): BEME) :
— Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind -4 EMREMA R 13,529 15,248
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions — R R & F 5T 84 30 1,556 1,484
15,085 16,732
Written-off of property, plant and equipment ME - HE KRG 242 1,295
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10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 18 May 2018, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement relating to the disposal of the entire issued share
capital of Powerwell Pacific and its subsidiaries (collectively
refer to as the “Disposal Group”) to an independent third party.
Powerwell Pacific was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI”) and is principally engaged in investment holding. The
principal activities of the Disposal Group are the provision of
sourcing and procurement solutions to customers for
production of watches, costume jewelries, and display and
packaging products. The disposal was completed on 18 May
2018 and the Disposal Group ceased to be subsidiaries of the
Group since 18 May 2018. Details of the assets and liabilities
disposed of and the calculation of the gain on disposal, are
disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

The loss for the year from the discontinued operation is set out
below. The comparative figures in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and related
notes have been re-presented as if the sourcing operation had
been discontinued at the beginning of the year.

10. BERILEZBER
MR2018F5A18H * AE B L E B
WENAEBERABYE=Z7LE
Powerwell Pacifick H KB Q7 (&
BIEEEB]D 22HEFHTRA -
Powerwell PacificiA EBREZE S ([
BELZESE|)EIMEKY  FERERE
Bk HEEBMNEIZEBKERTFIR
HAEERE  AEKRBEREIBEERD
BERESRFEEEAIR - HEZER
2018%5H18H FE X - B201845718
HRHESEETBAASENHNE R
Al- FAARHEEEMNABERTELE
Wz 2 FE B ER A B 7% 3R MY 413

= o

TRFINFACRUEEERBELZE
Bo-FeEakEttemEERT AL
BREFMEBEMZEENZS - BE
BESEFRFINDRIELE -

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Loss from sourcing business for the year FRERESER
Z &8 (4,880) (7,143)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & B A A A U a 525 =
(4,355) (7,143)

The results of the discontinued operation for the current and
prior year are as follows:

REER E-—FEERIEREXBRS
mr

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#T FE T

Revenue WA 10,379 63,275
Cost of sales 55 AR (9,955) (49,896)
Gross profit ER 424 13,379
Other revenue and other income Hb g A K E b U 25 333 736
Selling and distribution costs HE RS SHKA (101) (933)
Administrative expenses TEREX (5,536) (20,325)
Loss before income tax B BT 1S B AT BT 18 (4,880) (7,143)
Income tax expense FriS®if X - =
Loss for the year FAEE (4,880) (7,143)
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10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 10. ERIEESER (&2)

Loss for the year from discontinued operation includes the ERIEREXEBEENFANBRBE A
following: TEE:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fi&T FET
Auditors’ remuneration ZEET B
— Audit service — B ZRB - 180
— Non-audit services —FEBEZRY - 2
- 182
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME  BELREGBITE 106 339
Cost of inventories sold HETFERA 9,934 49,521
Net foreign exchange gain PE 5 Uk &5 5 58 (276) (516)
Operating lease charges in respective of i REFEE
land and building MEHE T H 527 487
Employee benefit expenses (excluding EERAFXZ
directors’ remuneration) (EEBMS BRI
— Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind — & 2R
T WA 4,161 15,682
— Retirement benefit schemes contributions — R URAE A FT & 3K 142 441
4,303 16,123
Written-down of obsolete inventories PR &2 13 & UL
(included in cost of sales) (FTASHERA) - 275
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Disposal Group REZ20185F12H31BIEFE  HE
paid approximately of HK$29,521,000 (2017: HK$10,816,000) SERAAEENFREREMENTL
to the Group’s net operating cash flows and paid nil (2017: 29,521,000/ 7t (20174 : 10,816,000
HK$42,000) in respect of investing activities. BIT) R EES T HE T (2017

£ 1 42,000/ 7T) °
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11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

FifeBip <

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Continuing operations BECEER
Current tax: BVERFRIA -
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBNEH 1,207 -
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax — B EEPTISH 7,681 41,591
8,888 41,591
Deferred tax: EETIA -
— credit for the year (note 28) —F R E (H:228) (1,928) (605)
6,960 40,986

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
the Inland Revenue (Amendment) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which
introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was
signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazette on the
following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the
first HK$2 million of profits of qualifying corporation will be
taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at
the flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong
Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax at
25% for both years.

China Trustful Group Limited FEZZ&EBER A 7

MR2018F3A21H BN LR B
2017 Hi T (B E]) GBI E & ([&EHI &
2]) - ZIEPIERS|AFSHREH -
ZAG GBI E P 2018E3 A28 H ER B K
Are YREZEREERTE - REF
SHMAS - & &% 25 E2,000,000
7 JC i BB B R B8.25% ¢ M AR 1B
2,000,000/ 7T 8935 F 2 B K 516.5% ©
AEEFERMAT 2 EBEEBH G
1S HEE LA16.5% ) &) — T K55 -

EERABHABHARS TSR LE
HIEAMBRRTETA « BEFEH
4 718D 4F J6 4521 o B R Bk 1) 216.5%
HE -

e B I 8 2 104 1D 4 P9 7 4 26% 10
BHES T A EHEH -



11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before income tax per the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

P8R (&)

Profit before income tax B AT 15550 B g A

Tax calculated at tax rates applicable to

the jurisdictions concerned BMERAEHNFE
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AT 0 2 A
Diks-%
Tax effect of non-taxable income ﬁ/,\u%@ft%)\ﬂ’]
WM&
Accelerated accounting depreciation over mEeFHEBD
tax depreciation under provided TRMIBETERE
Tax effect of estimated tax loss not recognised RERG TS
[k -4
Income tax expense Fris i B X

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused
estimated tax losses of approximately HK$54,028,000 (2017:
HK$46,250,000) available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of tax losses
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams and
unrecognised tax losses could be carried forward indefinitely.

AR R A E M E A

REFHMEHAX EREBa REAMD

2 HE R ES R A EYBR AT 15 30 Al s A 2 18R
R

2018 2017

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

20,596 139,811

5,318 37,031

2,894 3,031

(607) (212)

(1,928) (605)

1,283 1,741

6,960 40,986

REWERR AEB R HAMGETH
7% 85 18 #954,028,0007% 7T (20174 -
46,250,000/ 7T) - A A {EH 35 R 0%
ﬂ © ﬂi%iﬁ?&ﬂuw%f&TﬁEmli Eﬁl
WABBEEERREERIBEE - 8
ARG E BT ERAEE -
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12. DIVIDENDS

No final dividend was paid or proposed during the year, nor has

any dividend been proposed by the Board
subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued operations
The computations of basic and diluted earnings per share from

continuing and discontinued operations attributa
of the Company are based on the following data:

12. &2
FAMERMNSBRAHBRE - BES
T NERFEN RS B RRIKE TR

=1
N

of Directors

BREF (FHHE)
REFBERCRILESER
KAEFBERDRIERERBOANAEE
BB 2 BRERREERNTIRE
THIBEEHE -

13.

ble to owners

Earnings

Earnings for the purpose of basic
earnings per share (profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company)

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
Interest on convertible bonds, net of tax

Earnings for the purpose of diluted
earnings per share

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of basic earnings/(loss)
per share

Effect or dilutive potential ordinary shares:
— Share options
— Convertible bonds

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of dilutive earnings/(loss)
per share

As the Company’s outstanding convertible bonds where
applicable had an anti-dilutive effect to the diluted earnings per
share calculation for the year ended 31 December 2018, the
conversion of the above potential dilutive shares is not
assumed in the calculation of diluted earnings per share.
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2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FE T
ZF
REREAREFME 2
B (NRREE A
FERFEE R F]) 2,960 77,222
BESELTBER I ZE
AR ES 2 8
(B #IE) - 3,058
REREIREANME 2
B 2,960 80,280
2017
'000
F Az
BHEE
REREARAT,(EE)
s 2 @M% InsE
T 45 84 2,459,996 2,111,483
BEHBTERZFE
— BB R HE 13,006 34,767
— AR E 5 - 486,715
SEREEAR(EHE)
i & 2 58 % oniE
RECE 2,473,002 2,632,965

HRARAMAITENTRRES (0
) WHZE2018F 128318 IEFEE
CEREERNAEAERBELE
L BUR T E SRR 2 R B I R R
BB EERG -



13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued)
From continuing operations
The computations of basic and diluted earnings per share from
continuing operations attributable to owners of the Company
are based on the following data:

13.

SREF (B8R (4

el YT
RSB R A 2 R AR
2 SRR EA 258 BRI TR U A T B
HeE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEIT F&T
Earnings &2F
Earnings for the purpose of basic RERERBH®S
earnings per share (profit for the year ZBH(KRBHER A
attributable to owners of the Company) JE& {5 & W A1) 7,315 84,365
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BEEFTRAR ZE
Interest on convertible bonds, net of tax AmRES 2HE
(fBRBLIA) - 3,058
Earnings for the purpose of diluted REREFSBENME <
earnings per share gl 7,315 87,423

The denominators used are same as those detailed above for
both basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing and
discontinued operations.

From discontinued operation
The computations of basic and diluted loss per share from
discontinued operation attributable to owners of the Company
are based on the following data:

Ao BE FRFAEREFERDKL
REXG BREARBEERN 2 DT
R -

BT

PEEY I P  E NG 2N
5 2 5B R A 5 59 59 T AR B DA T
THES

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss i
Loss for the purpose of basic and dilutive Th SRR EE A N #EE & A
earnings per share (loss for the year s 2 &R (KA F
attributable to owners of the Company) A ANEEFRNEIR) (4,355) (7,143)

The denominators used are same as those detailed above for
both basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing and
discontinued operations.

PSR ElFEREFERERLL
REXBZBRERNRETRN 2 D&
R o
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14. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE 14. EERAZREH A T FHHM
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the RIEBER Z2GEM T B R EB R A K
applicable GEM Listing Rules and the disclosure requirements PIZHWEBERE AFEEFTHEREN
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows: T s

Retirement
benefit
Discretionary scheme
Fees bonuses  contribution Total

BKEH
g [P AN at Bl @t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET

Year ended 31 December 2018 HE2018F12A3IALEE
Executive directors: HTES:
Fei Jie - 1,200 - - 1,200
Ng Chin Ming Stephen (appointed on R /& B8 (72017435108
10 March 2017 and resigned on 28 EZERR201952728H

February 2019) BT) 1,182 100 18 1,300
Zhang Genjiang (“Mr Zhang”) ERI(ELAED

(appointed on 9 May 2017) (R2017E5 9B EZR ) 100 - - 100
Fung Chi Kin (appointed on HER

1 March 2019) (R2019F3 1B EZ ) - - - -

Independent non-executive directors:  BIUIFHTESE :

Jim Yiu Ming E2e 240 20 - 260
Sit Sai Hung, Billy i 300 25 - 325
Shen Ruolei hEE 240 20 - 260

3,262 165 18 3,445

130 China Trustful Group Limited FEZEEBER L



14. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

14. SERABEEHALTHEHNZ)

Retirement
benefit
Discretionary scheme
Fees bonuses  contribution Total
BKRER
e BB TEAL SHEI K BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Year ended 31 December 2017 HE2017F12A31H
EFE
Executive directors: HITEE
Fei Jie B 1,200 - - 1,200
Fung Chi Kin (retired on HEE (R20174F
8 May 2017) 5A8HRE) 639 = = 639
Ng Chin Ming Stephen (appointed i /& B8 (20174
on 10 March 2017 and resigned ~ 3A10BEZE LR
on 28 February 2019) 20192 A28 HEHT) 971 100 15 1,086
Zhang Genjiang (‘Mr Zhang”) ERI([ERE])
(appointed on 9 May 2017) (201745498
BZE) 65 - - 65
Independent non-executive BUFHITES:
directors:
Cheung Siu Wah (retired on RO (R201746
8 May 2017) 5A8HEM) 83 - - 83
Jim Yiu Ming E R 240 20 = 260
Sit Sai Hung, Billy Bt I 300 25 - 325
Shen Ruolei AEE 240 20 - 260
3,738 165 15 3,938

Mr. Ng Chin Ming Stephen has also been appointed as Chief
Executive Officer upon appointment as executive director and

resigned on 28 February 2019.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the years ended 31

December 2018 and 2017.

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

MRATERBZERNITESR - TF
EZERTHRAR A2 R2019%F2H

28H BT °

H E20184F K2017412A31H It &F
[§ @ WELMEEREXRZRELM

B & /O 2B -

#H 220184 K2017412A318 Ik &F
B AEBTEREEINEMEE
YE A48 5 0 B 2 5 N BE 7K £ [ B Y 22 )

SBER A -
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14. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE 14.
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)
The five highest paid individuals consisted of two (2017: two)
directors, details of whose remuneration are reflected in the
analysis presented above. Details of remuneration of the
remaining three (2017: three) highest paid individual are as
follows:

EFERAERBHALTHHNZ)

TEERSFALTEEMS (2017F : M
Z)EZ BBEFMFHBR XA
DITARE - HEE=2 (201746 =8)
REHATHHFEHFBOT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind

Retirement benefit scheme contributions RARAE ) FT B4 5k

The remuneration of the remaining three (2017: three)
individuals with the highest remuneration are within the
following bands:

e RMEAEYMNG

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T FAET
1,852 5,204

54 54

1,906 5,258

HB=Z (2017F : =Z2) ZaH A LH
FIE R AT & E -

Number of individuals

Nil - HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000

£ %1,000,0007% 7T

1,000,001 L E
2,000,000 7T

2,000,008 L&
3,000,000 7T

HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000
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15.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

15. BR&E

Licenses Software Total
s a] 04 st
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FE T FE T FET
Cost A
At 1 January 2017, 20171 H18 -
at 31 December 2017 and M2017F12H31H
at 1 January 2018 K& 120184F1 818 - = =
Additions NE 1,319 6,717 8,036
Exchange alignments R S = (272) (272)
At 31 December 2018 #”2018%E12H31H 1,319 6,445 7,764
Accumulated amortisation FEtEs
At 1 January 2017, R2017F1 /18 -
at 31 December 2017 and R2017F12H31H
at 1 January 2018 K 201841818 - - -
Charge for the year FAZ W 89 56 145
Exchange alignments bE 5 P - () @)
At 31 December 2018 #”2018%E12H31H 89 54 143
Carrying amounts AREE
At 31 December 2018 ?2018%12A31H 1,230 6,391 7,621

At 31 December 2017

R2017%F12H31H

Licenses are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives over period of 10 years.

Software is amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated

useful lives over period of 3 years

AR E R H10F ey b At A2 A & iR

BHAREEEH -

THRESHBF MG A E R F R

BHAREEEH -
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. Y% - BERRHE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixturesand  Plant and Motor Construction
Buildings improvements  equipment  machinery  vehicles in progress Total
fi
¥ HEkE KERDG HERHE RE  HRIE 4t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
Cost K&

At 1 January 2017 R2017E1A1R 48,138 5,487 3,767 49,662 4,156 929 112,139
Additions AE - 1,584 451 507 - 39 2,581
Disposals §E - - (43) - = = (43)
Written-off ik - (3,464) 89) (407) ?) - (3,962)
Transfer g2 - - 145 815 - (960) -
Exchange alignments EiAE 3,614 237 149 3,433 161 3 7,627

At 31 December 2017 and R2017E12A31B R
at 1 January 2018 R2018%1A1H 51,752 3,844 4,330 54,010 4315 41 118,342
Additions AE = 3,907 338 29,421 734 - 34,400

Derecognised upon disposal of HERBARZAL
subsidiaries (note 41) BRW241) - (531) (2,222) (4,493) (586) - (7.832)
Disposals HiE - - (242) (5,548) - - (5,790)
Written-off ik - (791) (119) - = = (904)
Transfer ik - - - 41 - #1) -
Exchange alignments EiA% (2,678) (136) (73) (3,525) (186) = (6,598)
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12A318 49,074 6,293 2,068 69,906 4211 - 131,618
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

16. W% - R RRE(F)

Furniture,
Leasehold fixturesand  Plant and Motor Construction
Buildings improvements  equipment machinery  vehicles in progress Total
fil»
¥ HEKE RERDHE RBERKE RE  ERIE Ch
HK8'000 HK$'000 HK8'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT 7T AT 7T AT AT
Accumulated depreciation g
At 1 January 2017 R2017£1 A1 1,333 3,360 2,218 9,083 1,208 - 17,197
Charge for the year ERYi 2,361 1013 550 9,177 715 - 13816
Eliminated on disposals R ERE = = (40) - - - 40)
Written-off i3 = (2,528) (29 (116) - - (2,667)
Exchange alignments EiA% 197 118 2 716 4 = 1,105
At 31 December 2017 and R2017E12A31B R
at 1 January 2018 R2018F1 A1 3,891 1,963 2,787 18,860 1,960 - 29,411
Charge for the year ERYi 2,429 809 446 9,902 824 = 14,410
Derecognised upon disposal of HENBARGE B
subsidiaries (note 41) (Hii41) - (531) 2,072 (4,340) (586) - (7,529
Eliminated on disposals R ERE # = = (187) (2,484) - - (2,671)
Written-off ik = (580) 82) - - - (662)
Exchange alignments EiA% (300) (60) (30) (1,045) (76) = (1511)
At 31 December 2018 1R2018512A318 6,020 1,601 812 20,893 2,122 - 31,448
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2018 120185125310 43,054 4,692 1,256 49,013 2,155 - 100,170
At 31 December 2017 R2017412A318 47,861 1,881 1,643 35,150 2,355 4 88,931

The Group’s buildings are located in the PRC held on
medium-term leases.

AEENEFURPE  AARHHEE
SR
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17.
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INTEREST IN LEASEHOLD LAND

17. HE L g

HK$’000
FET

Cost A
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1H1H 20,207
Exchange alignments E H A 1,526
At 31 December 2017 and at 1 January 2018 2017512831 H K 2018%1 A1H 21,733
Exchange alignments HE 5 5 2 (1,125)
At 31 December 2018 ®2018%12A31H 20,608
Accumulated amortisation Fotiies
At 1 January 2017 R2017%F1 818 264
Amortisation for the year iNGDg 467
Exchange alignments [E 5, 38 & 38
At 31 December 2017 and at 1 January 2018 R2017F12 318 & KR2018F1 A1H 769
Amortisation for the year iG] 480
Exchange alignments bE 5 SR (60)
At 31 December 2018 #2018 12A31H 1,189
Carrying amount AR (B
At 31 December 2018 2018 12A31H 19,419
At 31 December 2017 7R2017F12H31H 20,964

The Group’s interest in leasehold land is located in the PRC

held on medium-term lease.

THEERSH -

AEEWEE RN FE - A



18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 18. T HELREE
2017
HK$’000
FET
Current BN HA
Unlisted debt securities in the PRC, at cost BREAGTFERTRENIELETEBLES 3,122

19.

AFS financial assets were reclassified to financial assets at
FVTPL upon initial application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018.

The above unlisted debt securities represent structured
contracts entered into with a bank in the PRC with a principal
sum of RMB2,600,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,122,000). The debt securities are principal unprotected
with no predetermined or guaranteed return. The amount would
be repaid to the Group anytime upon request, and therefore,

the amount is classified as current assets.

INVENTORIES

19.

AEESMEEDN2018F1A1HE
X e & S B 7% =R 4 2E BN 505K By B R
DEEBEANFEFABRZSREE -

Lt 3F EHERE SRR R - KPBRTT
RIVMERMERYN  HAZRER/AR
#2,600,0007T (48 & 1 493,122,000/
To) BB EFRIFRA - BYEESL
BEXRBLR - ZFHBERR EKEEE
BEETAKE  Fit ZFEAIER
MENEE °

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

R
ERm
FX 2

Inventories are expected to be recovered within one year.

The cost of inventories sold recognised as expenses and
included in ‘cost of sales’ with the amount of approximately
HK$132,986,000 (2017: HK$332,762,000), which included
write-down of obsolete inventories of Nil (2017: HK$275,000).

i
2018 2017

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET TETT

59,925 8,350

8,502 11,668

3,218 13,720

71,645 33,738

FEERHN—FAKE -

HRAERAZWETATHEEXAN]HEET
Bk A4 5132,986,00078 7T (20174 -
332,762,000/ L) - BRI EREFE
OB (20174 + 275,000/ 7T) °
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20. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE

The balance represents the contingent consideration receivable
in relation to the acquisition of Core Kingdom Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred as “Core Kingdom Group”)
completed on 27 February 2015 (the “Completion Date”).
Contingent consideration receivable has been designated at
financial assets at FVTPL upon initial recognition and measure
at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The movement
of the fair value of contingent consideration receivable are as

20. FEUSLRIKME

45 th 15 A W B Core Kingdom Limited
REWE R R (& Core Kingdom
£E]) (B 2015528278 ([T H
) 5ER) 2 RS AR (E - FEUS A
RERYTERRIEE AR AFETA
BamemEE  WHRREHAREAT
BEffZE - BERSIARBZAFEZH N
T -

follow:

2017
HK$’000
FET
At 1 January ®1A1H 7,107

Compensation from profit guarantee i AR 7% 2 fRE
(note 22) (H:#22) (2,596)
Loss arising in fair value change RNEEEHELE BB (4,511)
At 31 December M®12H31H -

Note: Shortfall payment in respect of profit guarantee

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement (“SPA”) entered in relation
to the acquisition, the vendor has guaranteed that the audited profit after
tax of Tong Yin and its subsidiary for the three financial years ended 31
December 2015, 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017 shall not be
less than RMB20,000,000, RMB24,000,000 and RMB30,000,000
respectively.

In case the profit guarantee is not fulfilled for the corresponding year, the
vendor shall pay 51% of the shortfall (“Shortfall”) to the Company within
seven days of the delivery of the audited consolidated financial statements,
and for the avoidance of doubt, if Tong Yin and its subsidiary sustained
loss for such financial year, 51% of the amount of such loss shall be
included as part of the Shortfall.

The fair value of profit guarantee as at the Completion Date, amounted to
approximately HK$20,536,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the audited net
profit of Tong Yin and its subsidiary had not satisfied the profit
guarantee, as a result, the vendor is required to make the
shortfall payment to the Company in accordance with the terms
and conditions as stated in the SPA. Therefore, a loss arising in
fair value change and a compensation from profit guarantee of
approximately HK$4,511,000 and HK$2,596,000 was
recognised respectively in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income during the year ended
31 December 2017.
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BEFUEEEMIVZEE HE (B
EEl) BFIREBREREWEBRQF
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RFEHR
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21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

B oK RIE

Trade receivables 5 EWFIE

Less: Allowance for credit losses

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally
allows a credit period of 30 to 180 days to its customers.

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables, net of
allowance for credit losses reorganised, presented based on
the invoice date, which approximates the respective revenue
recognition dates and net of allowance for credit losses:

B EEERRE

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
194,874 381,714
(11,087) -
183,787 381,714

BHREFBERSTHER—RETHE
F30E180KEEH ©

REEAH (B WS ER A YRS 2
Sl 2B HREYFIR (R CEREERS
BEE) 2B T (EHBREE R
(PR

0 - 30 days 0-30:K

31 - 60 days 31-60K
61 — 90 days 61-90X
91 - 180 days 91-180K
Over 180 days 180K A £

At 31 December 2018, trade receivables with the amounts of
approximately HK$178,259,000 (2017 HK$375,668,000) are
due from the Group’s top five largest customers.

At 31 December 2018, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of approximately HK$129,682,000 which are past due
at the end of the reporting period. As at 31 December 2018,
trade receivables of HK$129,682,000 were past due but not
impaired. These mainly relate to customers from whom there is
no recent history of default. Based on past experience,
management of the Group are of the opinion that no provision
for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

2018 2017
Hk$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
53,744 370,544

- 1,936

- 172

78 4,655
129,965 4,407
183,787 381,714

N2018F 128318 ' EWAEE A KX
REME S EWRIE A 4178,259,000
77T (20174 : 375,668,000/ 7T) °

N2018F12A31H  KNEEE 5
FRRELEH2RELAERELDN A
129,682,000/ Tt K & B R B @
Hi 2 FE W BR 18 - 201812 A31H -
129,682,000 T2 & 5 EWFKIEE &
HAB R BVE o 7% 30 TE = Z a3 #f 0 &
BEASBNEFER - RBREAELR
AEBEEEBRE  ARZSEHZE
BEERUWESEANEY  BNEEAEATE
e - At EFERZ S AR IRBE
B o
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21.

22.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Comparative information under HKAS 39

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts which are
past due at the end of the reporting period for which the Group
has not recognised an allowance for doubtful debts because
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables which
are past due but not impaired:

21.

B 5 RIE ()
FEESTERBIHIETZLLBEH
EXBEBRECEZREFBEBRENRSEH
REBHZFE ANEEEXAUES
R Rz EFRNBAR BRI E - &
NG E A AR R AR o AR B
IR EERFBEMERR -

EEHMERBE 28 5 R RIAZ Rk
DT

2017

HK$’000

FAET

Neither past due nor impaired 3 4% 260 B SRR (B 285,075
1 - 30 days past due #HER1-30K 90,838
31 — 60 days past due # HI31-60K 172
61 — 90 days past due #HI61-90K =
91 — 180 days past due #HI91-180K =
Over 180 days past due # #3180 K A | 5,629
381,714

At 1 January 2018, no loss allowance on the trade receivables
was provided upon transition to HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, an increase in loss
allowance of approximately HK$11,087,000 was recognised,
details are stated in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

22,

R2018F1 A1 H » RiBEZB B BR
EHBFR M T ABNERE SR
W TERTH R E B EE - NEIE20184F12
A31H I FEERREBBEMEL MY
11,087,000/ 7T * B E R R A B 53R
K HIFES35 ©

ZE AANREREMEKRIE

Deposits paid BN &0
Trade deposits paid BZENZE
Prepayments SRR O

Compensation from profit guarantee (note 20)
Other receivables

H & R IR
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i@ R 7R 2 fB 18 (B at20) -

2018 2017
Hk$’000 HK$'000
FET &L
4,343 2,247
191,819 9,899
937 1,715
2,696

74,386 54,060
271,485 70,5617




22.

23.

24.

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s other receivables mainly
included guarantee deposits paid to a customer with the
amount of approximately HK$68,316,000 (2017:
HK$53,022,000). The guarantee deposits paid during the year
ended 31 December 2017 was fully recovered during the year
ended 31 Decmeber 2018.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) RELATED COMPANIES/A
DIRECTOR/A SHAREHOLDER/NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Amounts due from/(to) related companies/a director/
a shareholder/non-controlling interests are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the maximum
amount due from a director and a related company is
HK$9,018,000 (2017: HK$9,018,000) and HK$117,000 (2017:
Nil) respectively.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

22.

23.

24,

e AAREBREMEKRIE
(%)

MR2018F12A31H - KEBH H b
JE Uy 3B = Z B §F 468,316,000/ JT
(20174 : 53,022,000/ L) HENFF
REL - NEE2017F12A318 1L &
B2 EREESEREE2018F12A8
31HIEFE2EHKE -

FEW (FEf)BEAT, —&ZEE
S —ERRFERESRIE

FEU (FERR) BBE AR,/ —REE,/—
IR, FEERERFRIAREIER - 2
BRBEBERERER -

K& E2018F12A31B IEFE @ &
W—ZEEN " HBEERARRERS
% %8 5 5l 29,018,000/ 7T (20174 :
9,018,000/ 7t) K 117,000/ 7t (2017
F ) o

Re LRITHER

Cash and bank balances 17
REERIRTT 3K

Short-term bank deposits

Bank balances carry interest at floating rates and placed with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. At 31
December 2017, short-term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months depending on
the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn
interest at the respective short-term time deposit rates ranged
from 0.77% to 1.10% p.a.

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s cash and bank balances
denominated in USD and Renminbi (“RMB”) is approximately
HK$1,454,000 and HK$49,728,000 (2017: HK$36,600,000
and HK$69,460,000) respectively.

HERREEED
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fi#TT FETT
56,683 172,004
- 121,849
56,683 293,853

IRITHERIZZ B ARG B - WiF RN
HET R E 58RI - K2017
F12H31H - MHITE TR HRAHA—
BE=@ATE  DHRETAER AN
WeFRME @ LSRN TFHEO.77
E £ 1.10[E 2 55 HA & HA 15 3P == SR X A

B o
o

M2018F12831H » KEE N X7t
AR (TAREDFEMNRS R
1T 8 9 Bl 4 &1,454,0007%8 7T &
49,728,0005% 7T (20174 : 36,600,000
76 7T 269,460,000/ 7T ) °
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

RMB is not a freely convertible currency in the PRC and the
remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the foreign
exchange control promulgated imposed by the PRC
government.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group performed
impairment assessment on bank balances and concluded that
the probability of defaults of the counterparty banks are
insignificant and accordingly, no allowance for credit losses is
provided.

24. BHeRBELEEY (&)

ERE ARBIFFAEHEBZE
¥ mMELTEZESXPEBNET
MY SME & I AR 8 o

REE2018F12831BH ItFE » A&
B E S IRITAMRETREN G - RAH
FHIBITWELOTEEDK - Bt I &
STIREEEERE -

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT 25. BES RHEMEMNSEBERSHNAE

LIABILITIES

(i) Trade and other payables (i)

Trade payables 5 N FRIE

Accruals and other payables FESTE A & E 4th FE S 508
Receipt in advance TR R IE

Trade deposits received B e Wize

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables,
based on the invoice date:

BEoRAMEBARE
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$000
F#&T THET
13,490 114,395
8,207 13,078
- 693
- 789
21,697 128,955

0 - 30 days 0-30K
31 - 60 days 31-60K
61 — 90 days 61-90K
Over 90 days 90K A F

The average credit period granted by supplier ranging

from 30 to 180 days.
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BREZAMEINZE FH RN FIA

ZERE DTN
2018 2017
Hk$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
8,134 76,896
- 16,064
- 17,785
5,356 3,650
13,490 114,395

HEBRTHFHEEHRN T30

£180H -



25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (Continued)

(ii)

Contract liabilities

25 ESRHEMEBARERENAR

(%)

(i) SHAEE

At At
31 December 1 January
2018 2018*
2018 20184
12A31H 1H18*
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Sales of electric vehicles and HEEE)TE REBE®M
related products 1,822 789
* The amount in this column are after the adjustments from the LY sEC A ERE SIS REERFE

application of HKFRS 15.

When the Group receives a deposit before the control of
the electric vehicles and related products are passed to
the customers, this will give rise to contract liabilities at
the start of a contract, until the control of the electric
vehicles and related products are passed to the
customers and revenue of the respective contracts are
recognised.

For the contract liabilities at 1 January 2018, the entire
balances are recognised as revenue to profit or loss
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

155/ EFTHE -

i A8 5= B 70 B )T B e AR B o O 22 7
REBEEFPAMKEIES  HHERE
BHVHELGNEE BEEEPHAE
RABERNZHIREBRERF RER
HESHZWARL -

2018 F1 A1HMALNAEREMS @ &
EEBRYE RNE E2018F12H831H 1k
FEZIEZANBERBWA -
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26. SECURED LOAN

26.

RIKFER

Secured loan repayable within one year AR —FANEEN
BB ER

The secured loan bears interest at 1% per annum above the
Hong Kong dollar prime lending rate published by The Hong
Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited and is
repayable together with interest not later than 12 months from
the drawdown date. The loan is fully secured by the share
capital of Powerwell Pacific, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company incorporated in the BVI. Subject to the fulfiiment of
certain conditions, the Company shall have the right to extend
the repayment date to another 12 months from the original
repayment date.

On 6 February 2017, the Company has extended the
repayment date of the secured loan to another 12 months from
the original repayment date. On 6 February 2018, the Company
signed another supplemental loan agreement to further extend
the repayment date to another 3 months from the original
repayment date. On 3 May 2018, the amount was fully settled.
27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS
On 1 June 2016, the Company issued unsecured convertible
bonds in the principal amount of HK$110,000,000 to satisfied
the acquisition of property, plant and equipment and interest in
leasehold land. The bonds are interest-free. The bondholders
may convert the bonds into ordinary shares of the Company at
any time prior to and exclusive of the maturity date on 31 May
2018 at an initial conversion price of HK$0.55 per share in
accordance with the convertible bonds agreements (subject to
adjustment if necessary). The conversion price was adjusted to
HK$0.11 per share and the number of conversion shares were
adjusted from 200,000,000 shares to 1,000,000,000 shares on
4 May 2016 upon the completion of share subdivision. On 25
May 2017, the conversion price was further adjusted to
HK$0.109 per share upon completion of placement of new
shares.

On 1 June 2018, a convertible bond holder has exercised its
conversion rights attached to the convertible bond with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$53,051,974 into
486,715,358 ordinary shares of the Company at the adjusted
conversion price of HK$0.109 per share.
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27.

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET

- 15,000

ERFERIEZENES LSELRTA
PR A B 98 5 2 7 J0 5% 1B 2B A = 4 ) K
Esr e BEBRINAEBRBTER2(E
AERFE—HEZE - EFXEPowerwell
Pacific (AR A — MR ABRE ZHE T
MLz EWNBRR) ZBRAERTE
R o B R — MM - AR AIBES
FRRZEEHBEEI2M@EA -

R2017F2A6H » ARRIEHERIBE
HMEERASHREZERDBHERI2HE
A > R2018%F2A6H * AR A&z B —
BERZAER S NS EEASHERE
EHHE—FSERIMEA - R2018F5A8
3H BHSBEEEHEE-

o] & B% 1& 5

MR2016F6A1H * " AE BITAE R
/110,000,000 JT /Y £ K 1 7] #8 j% (&
F o U MWEYE - BE REHEAR
ST D -  ZEEHFRE - BB
BMREHFHZE EFHFFE ATR2018
F5A31H BB (T"REZB) AT
] B P 4% 9] 0 88 32 (8 5 iR 0.55/8 7T (7]
REZETUAR) BESERALAA
A B AT - BB R2016F5 48 iR
DIFHBEKEAEEFRAIE T
i #2 A% f% 1 2 B §200,000,0000% 8 &
%1,000,000,0008% 201745 H25
H BREENRETBREHEE—T
FHEAFR0.1098 T ©

R2018F6A1H » — B AR EH 4+
BATHEERES 5 A53,051,9748 7T
Z MR EHFTIH 2 A - AR A
486,715,358f% AN A &) L WAL - L=
(B A ER0.1098 7T °



27.

28.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The bond contains two components, liability and equity
elements. The equity element is presented in equity under the
heading of “convertible bonds reserve”. The effective interest
rate of the liability component on initial recognition is 7.41%.

27. TRARMES (2

EHFBEMERNG (BEPH RiERD
7) - MR ERET [ BRRES
HHEI25 - AEHHD 2 ERFER
THERRRT.41% o

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’000

F& T FiET

At 1 January M1A1H 51,444 47,781
Conversion of convertible bonds IR AR AR E S (53,052) -
Imputed interest expenses (note 8) HEMNEREZ (H/7£8) 1,608 3,663
At 31 December M®12H31H - 51,444

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY/(ASSET)
The following is the major deferred tax balance recognised by
the Group and movements thereon:

28. BEHIEAME (EE)

INTAASERER T BERELEHALR
RERBEED :

Allowance
Convertible for credit
bonds losses Total
=g
iR EH BRI st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAET FET FAET
Cost A
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1 18 1,679 - 1,679
Credit to consolidated statement FFAGREEm K EAM
of profit or loss and other FEWER(WaE11)
comprehensive income (note 11) (605) - (605)
At 31 December 2017 and M2017F12H31H &
at 1 January 2018 7K2018%F1 A1H 1,074 - 1,074
Credit to consolidated statement FFAGREEm K EAM
of profit or loss and other FEWER(WaE11)
comprehensive income (note 11) (264) (1,664) (1,928)
Release of deferred tax upon REEHA O] R A& A B
conversion of convertible bonds ERORTER A (810) = (810)
Exchange alignment PE 7 % - 65 65
At 31 December 2018 #2018%12H31H - (1,599) (1,599)
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29. SHARE CAPITAL

29. &

2018 2017
Number of Number of
ordinary Carrying ordinary Carrying
shares amount shares amount
EERYE REE EEgEledE REE
’000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$'000
Fig FET FK FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each B 1%0.027% T 1Y I 38 ik
Authorised: EE
At 1 January and at 31 December M1A1B ER12831H 5,000,000 100,000 5,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRAR :
At 1 January W A1H 2,151,209 43,024 2,051,209 41,024
Placement of new shares (note i) B & HTAR (f152i) - - 100,000 2,000
Exercise of share options (note i) 1T I RE (A7 22i7) 37,500 750 - -
Conversion of convertible bonds (note i) B # Al # IR &5
(W itiii) 486,715 9,734 - -
At 31 December M12A31H 2,675,424 53,508 2,151,209 43,024
Notes: W -

(i)

(i)

(ii)

On 25 May 2017, the Company allotted and issued an aggregate
100,000,000 new shares of HK$0.02 each to not less than six places at
a price of HK$2.80 per share. Of the net proceeds of the placing of
HK$277,760,000, approximately HK$138,000,000 and HK$9,760,000
were used in the operation of the Electric Vehicle Business and for
general working capital purpose respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, several option holders
exercised their option right to subscribe for 37,500,000 new ordinary
shares at exercise price of HK$0.234 per share.

On 1 June 2018, a convertible bond holder has exercised its conversion
rights attached to the convertible bonds with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$53,051,974 into 486,715,358 ordinary shares of the
Company at the adjusted conversion price of HK$0.109 per share.
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(i)

(ii)

(il

M201765R258 AR 7] LA & i82.80/%
T2 B RS D RSB R AR R
7T & #£100,000,000% & A% M f80.02/5 7T
ZHBRM REFTHZHMEREFEAR
277,760,0007% 7T + £ 1 49138,000,0007%
7L %.9,760,0007% 7t 2 B A BB /T B
BERBE—REELESHE -

REE2018F12A31A L FE - & THER
EHAARER0234B T ZTEETEL
B8 A% R AE A - DA R B837,500,0000% 31 i @
Hﬁ °

MR2018F6A1H  — R A RESIFE
AFTE E AR € 48 58 A53,051,9748 70 2 7]
BREHFHMZBRE BRAKXARZ
486,715,358 LM - KABRERERT
f%0.1097% 7T °



30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 30. RXATIMBRARREEEE
MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) EFLATIMBRRFR
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$°000
F#T FiET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE k& 3,950 973
Prepayment for property, plant and Y BENMEEZ
equipment FEENE - 2,865
Investments in subsidiaries R B R RKIEE 5,241 32,366
9,191 36,204
Current assets RENEE
Deposits, prepayments and other Ze  ENZER
receivable H {th jE W FRIB 2,369 6,093
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE Uk B /B R R ZRIB 479,617 341,267
Cash and cash equivalents HeERIBEEEY 4,869 130,822
486,855 478,182
Current liabilities HREIEE
Accruals and other payables EETERKEAMm
JE& 1~ /I8 1,112 1,575
Secured loan EEBER - 15,000
Convertible bonds AR E 5 - 51,444
Amount due to a director B —REEFHIE 30,000 5,438
Amount due to a subsidiary FEf — M B A R K8 - 4,829
31,112 78,286
Net current assets HENEEREA 455,743 399,896
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREBERE 464,934 436,100
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30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 30.
MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

FABMBRARRMEE RS (2

(Continued)
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) FATIMBRRER(E)
(Continued)
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FET
Non-current liability RBERE
Deferred tax liability EIEFIE B & - 1,074
Net assets BEFH 464,934 435,026
Capital and reserves BEXRGHE
Share Capital B% Zx 53,508 43,024
Reserves H1E 411,426 392,002
Total equity Einida 464,934 435,026

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors on 26 March
2019 by:

Fei Jie
Bx

Director

EF
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R2019F3H26HRKXEEEHE

Fung Chi Kin
BER
Director
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30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 30. A ASHMBEEREREEBES (&)
MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Movement of reserves of the Company

(b) FATHBLDH

Share-

based Convertible

Share payment bonds  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
NEREEE TREES

BipiEE Z6HREE fke AitER &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

A7 T2 TA7 T2 T2

At 1 January 2017 R2017E1A1H 163,815 2,565 9,842 (44,227) 131,995

Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year FRERERZEEEEE - = = (15,753) (15,753)

Placement of new shares REHR 278,000 - - - 278,000

Share issuing expenses RinETHEY (2,240) - - - (2,240)
At 31 December 2017 and at 1 January 2018 2017124318 Rk

1201851 A1A 439575 2,565 9,842 (59.980) 392,002

Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year FRERERZESEEE - - - (32,729) (32,729)

Exercise of share options EERE 10,590 (2,565) - = 8,025

Conversion of convertible bonds BT BRES 53,970 - (10,652) - 43,318
Release of deferred tax upon conversion of W& A A

convertible bonds ERETHE - - 810 - 810

At 31 December 2018 120185127318 504,135 - - (92,709 411,426
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31. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31.

(i) Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, during the year, the Group carried
out the following material transactions with its related
parties:

Nature of transaction

XotE

EXHEALRSD
() BRAGAMBHRREMIDAE
BEIN AREAFEEQRERE

Richmind International
Investment Limited (note (a))

BLBERREARAR (HiZ@)

Rental expenses
HeMx

WINE KT E AR A F
(“Huzhou Brighsun”) (note (b)(i)

MM BT B B BR AR Smie
(BB L) (B3 b)3))

Sales of goods

Mr. Zhang (note (b)(ii) Loan
5 & (B b)) B

Mr. Zhang (note (c))
financial assets
B (Kt () HEAHEESMERE
AL EEREEFR QA
(“Zhejiang Zhisin Holdings
Limited”) (note (d))
AL EEREEBRAQ A BEmiHE
(I zEEREEERAGE])
(K15t(d))

Sales of goods

MMNBERREREES
EERARDA
(“Hangzhou Hong Tai Equity
Investment Fund Management
Co., Ltd”) (note (e))
MMNBERBREREECEEERAA EmHE
(TMNEREREREESER
BRARL) (BitE)

Sales of goods

Notes:

(@) Richmind is a subsidiary of Data Champion Limited in which
members of the key management personnel of the Group, have
equity interest in Data Champion Limited.

(b) (i) Mr. Zhang has material equity interest in Huzhou Brighsun.

In the opinion of the directors, this transaction is de minimis

transaction and fully exempted from shareholders’ approval,

annual review and all the disclosure requirements of

continuing connected transaction as set out in Chapter 20

of the GEM Listing Rules.

(if) On 31 July 2018, amount of HK$30,000,000 was advanced
from Mr. Zhang to the Group for the purpose of general
working capital. Directors confirmed that the Company has
complied with the applicable requirements under Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Disposal of available-for-sale

ATETUATEARS
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$000
FET THET
527 1,296
- 2,119
30,000 -
- 9,000
540 -
845 -

& % RData Champion LimitedZ M B
RAEMAKEEEER A% FData
Champion Limited 2 J% 4 -

i) SERERHNBEREERBMNES
EERE  ZRXHBREMRKTR
% - B2 E %8 TGEME T
A 20T PREARIRBLE « FEBE R
SFEMEZ SN ARBERE -

T

(ii) MR2018F7A31H » ELAAAER
#/430,000,0007 TLIE A — R EIEE
e EEERANQAE ETGEME
MR E20F B THBEARE °



31.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31. EXHEALTRS (&)
(Continued)
(i) Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated (i) BAGEUBEHREREMILYATE
financial statements, during the year, the Group carried BEI  NEBEREE LA
out the following material transactions with its related ATHETUTERRS : (8)
parties: (Continued)
Notes: (Continued) Hiat - (48)
(¢)  Mr. Zhang is the executive director and a substantial shareholder of © EBEEERARFAHTEERIER
the Company. R e
(d)  Tong Yin is 49% owned by #iL 2 (EEREBER AT (Zhejiang ) BRENIZEZEREEBRAF
Zhisin Holdings Limited*) (“Zhisin”), which is in turn 60% owned by (TZE)) #EH49% Mz EHEL
Mr. Zhang. Tong Yin is a subsidiary of the Company and is thus an EHERB0% - BIRARND B KK EA
related company of the Company. AIRBEAERAREERTR
(e) Smart Focus Inc Limited, a substantial shareholder of the (e) ERARARARNARIEERR - &
Company, has material interest in B EBREREECEERR RINERREREESERARA
A7) (Hangzhou Hong Tai Equity Investment Fund Management AI([BR)BEEEAMEXS -
Co., Ltd") (“Hong Tai’).
* for identification purpose only
(i) Compensation of key management personnel (i) EEEEBASHHE
Included in employee benefit expenses are key EERMAIAFTAETEZEEEA
management personnel compensation (including B(REES)NFEE  BEFS
directors), the details of which are as follows: R
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Salaries and other allowance e R EMERL 2,582 8,179
Retirement benefit schemes contributions 3R /R & F 51 2 ¢t 3k 18 69
2,600 8,248

(iii)

Details of the balances with related parties at the end of
the reporting period are set out in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

(i) RBMEPR - BEEALZRXHE

R IBEN 4R & B 7% R M 523 -
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32.

33.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as
follows:

32.

EEHEERE

RBERR  ARERTAHELEHE
HTEBEEMRORREEREONK
AENZIRBERNT

Within one year —F R
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FE_FFRF
(BiEEREME)

The Group leases certain properties under operating leases.
Leases are mainly negotiated for average term of one to three
years (2017: three) years. The Group does not have an option
to purchase the leased premises at the expiry of the lease
period.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

33

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$000
F#&T THET
3,919 5,887
1,985 6,436
5,904 12,323

AEERELCEHENRSETYWE - B
EXBEUFH—F=F (2017F : =5)
WEEHEITER - ASETENEEH
EmEEEREMENRIEE-

BEXRRiE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$°000
FETT FAET
Authorised and contracted, but not EREREETA -
provided for: BREHE
— Purchase of property, plant and equipment - BEE W - K= MK 22,400 716

China Trustful Group Limited FEZEEBEER AT




34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
Pursuant to a resolution passed at annual general meeting of
the Company held on 22 December 2010, the share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the
Company.

The major terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised
as follows:

(ii)

The purpose is to attract and retain quality personnel and
other persons to provide incentive to them to contribute
to the business and operation of the Group.

The eligible person include full time or part time
employees of the Group (including any director, whether
executive or non-executive and whether independent or
not, or consultant of the Company or any subsidiary); any
holder of any securities issued by the Group; and any
business or joint venture partners, contractors, agents or
representatives, consultants, advisers, suppliers,
customers, licensees (including any sub-licensee),
landlords or tenants (including any sub-tenants) of the
Group or any invested entity or any person who, in the
sole discretion of the Board of Directors, has contributed
or may contribute to the Group.

The total number of shares in respect of which share
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
shall not exceed 10% of the issued shares capital of the
Company at any point in time, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
share option granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
shall not exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted to each participant
or grantee (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
share options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the shares in issue from time to time unless the
same is approved by the shareholders.

34. UERHhBERZARRXS
Bi% AR D FHR20105F12 8228 #1727

BRBFASBBIRER

AAFR

B R 8 ([BREUERT &) -

BT E Z T2 GEF BT

(i

(i)

(iv)

BREGFS ZCBENARSIRER
BEETREMAL  HBERER
AEBZEHREEFELAER -

BERALTERASEZB AR
BEES (BRARARIMHEL
AZEAESE  THAATESEX
FHTES T TwmBYETHE
BRARFER)  AEBEET
ZIEAREF2EMARE A RAE
B ER PR E B R Z TR
BEBH  AGRH  KREHLRX -
BE - ERA - HER-FFP X
BA(BRENEEZREA) X
TRHEF(BRERMIBEABEP) -
AEFTEERMNBREC LN
EHAKBELRRERMZEMAL -

IREARRRBRRELAAE - RIF
Bt B AT IR 2 BB A P S
RZBHBREAFBARNRE N
REHITRAZ10% - ATTEMRE
RIB S B AT 8 S (T /] B A BB X
BRI M ERITEZBER
BMBEBTZROHBE - FEBEAA
RAETREEITRAZ30% °

BrIEMES IR EALE - MR+ — (&
AABRTER2BEENEBEAZ
BRE(REETHE  BEEEkE
RITEHEREAE) BITHFERE TR
BT 2RO AETNEBETE
BEITERHZ1% °
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
(Continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted to each substantial
shareholder (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the
Company or any of its respective associates or an
independent non-executive Director or any of his
associates (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding share options) in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such grant: (a) representing in
aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue; and (b) having
an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
shares at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5
million, unless the same is approved by the shareholders.

The exercisable period should be determined by the
Board of Directors upon grant of the share option but in
any event should not exceed 10 years from the date of
offer for grant.

Save as determined by the Board of Directors provided in
the offer of the grant of the relevant share options, there
is no general requirement that a share option must be
held for any minimum period before it can be exercised.

Offer of options shall be open for acceptance in writing or
by telex received by the secretary of the Company for a
period of 21 days inclusive of, and from, the date of grant.

The subscription price of a share option must be the
highest of:

a. the closing price of a share of the Company on the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant of the option;

b the average closing price of a share of the Company
from the 5 business days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the option; and

c. the nominal value of a share of the Company on the
date of grant of the option.

The Share Option Scheme is effective for 10 years from
the date of adoption of such scheme (ie. effective until 21
December 2020).

154  China Trustful Group Limited FEBEIZEE£BERE 2 T

34. LIRIBERZHARR S (E)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(vili)

(ix)

RBEEEERHBH(BFEZA)
2+ ERAARARRIEREE
BRER(EZRGEMLEM R A K
ERAEABMBEALBIIFNTES
SRR AR BRE (2
EEITE - DREEEHEARITEBR
B)ETERERTRETEITL
BRIV KEE - (B HXTBHBBALQR
BEITRMN 20.1% : RbO)IREE
RELBHARRB A < Y E
T E - (B E 115 1E5,000,000
BT BRIFESRRILAE -

TEHHREFe N R ERERE
RE - BERMERERT 0 NEBG
B BHEI0F -

BREFSZERERNKRHAH
BRERSEREN - LERERE
PR ITE R AR A 2 SRR -

BRETAEROBEHNE(BEZ
B2t BAHER AT AS
NEmPAgmE R mwE R
BT AR -

BREZABELEAR/RNATER
ZEREE

a. RERERLBEHARASE
P B Bt 32 P 2 W T (B

b. EERBERERDL B HAREE
EBARAERENZFH
e &

c. RERERLBHARAS
Befetn 2 m{E °

BRI AT B R RN s 5T 8 B H e
+FE R AR (B E Z22020%12 7
2IH—EHAR) °



34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION (Continued)
At 31 December 2017, the number of shares in respect of
which may be issued upon exercise of share options granted
and remain outstanding under the Share Option Scheme was
37,500,000, representing 1.7% of the shares of the Company
in issue at those dates. These options were granted by the
Company on 27 May 2015 and are exercisable from 27 May
2015 to 26 May 2018 (both dates inclusive). Further details of
the share options granted are discussed in the section headed
“Share Option Scheme” of the Directors’ Report in this annual

34.

LM BERZARES (Z)

MR2017F12 A318 - 1B 15 BE R #E =+ 2
EREREAITE Z BIREEITERA
RE3 1T Z IR 1D # B A37,500,0000% - 18
ERARRRNZERHZERITRMDZ
1.7% > Z EHE N TH B A2 R 12015
F5H27H X H - W R2015F5 A27H
F2018F5H26H (RIEEEM A ) 8
WA 1T6 - BRI R EERERE—
SHBERAFTREST SRS [BRER

report. 2l — & ETEm o
Number of share options
RREYE
Outstanding at
1 January 2017,
31 December 2017 Exercised
and at during 31 December
1 January 2018 the year 2018
R2017%£1A18 »
20174£12A 318
R2018%F1H18 20184
Share option type PRI e R AT REMTTE 128310
2015 20154 37,500,000 (37,500,000 -
Exercisable at the end of the year ARNERITE 37,500,000 -
Weighted average exercise price MEFHITEE HK$0.234 HK$0.234 -
0.2347%8 T 023478 7T

In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the
weighted average share price at the dates of exercise was
HK$3.08.

BEABTEZBEREMNS - RITEA
HJ 2 A5 BB /338.08/8 T °
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 35. £piEMEERAFEE
MEASUREMENTS
The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks which result AEBAREBBEBBEREASH
from the use of financial instruments in its ordinary course of TAmMARZESRRAR - 2 @ERE
operations. The financial risks include market risk (mainly EmERB(TEAIINERR) =8
foreign currency risk), credit risks and liquidity risk. Details of EkrnsEeRk FHEemIAD
these financial instruments are disclosed in the notes below. FHBERATHERRE - REBHERE
The Group’s overall risk management focuses on the [R. B B E & HR R & Bl T % A9 T B TRORIME
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise R ORERRNEESERIBOBELED
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. N2 RREERETEEEERES
Risk management is carried out by key management under the ERENBRET ASEUEEEE
policies approved by the directors. The Group does not have REBHK - T8 BERAKESK
written risk management policies. However, the directors and EIE A B HA e mE DA B K R & f DA
senior management of the Group meet regularly to identify and REERBARFRERMEE SR
evaluate risks and to formulate strategies to manage financial Rk - BZESETARBNRR LA
risks on timely and effective manner. The risks associated with &= E 5 A AR K A BE R B A9 ER SR 3 %1 a0
these financial instruments and the policies applied by the e
Group to mitigate these risks are set out below.
Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities EHEEREMEBEEN
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and REBRRERARERE M BAR TR E
financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement of RHTHEENTRBENREES R
financial position at the end of the reporting period categorised LN
as follows:
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#IT FAET
Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale financial assets AtHESREE - 3,122
Financial assets measured at amortised cost BEERAAEZEREE 319,316 =
Loans and receivables ES R EWHKIA - 743,488
Financial liabilities EREE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost REHEKATIENSREE 51,819 206,715




35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

35. EREMERRATEANE(F)

Market risk 15 B B
Foreign currency risk 0B B

The Group major operates in Hong Kong and the PRC and
majority of transactions are denominated in HK$, USD and
RMB. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities, which are
denominated in a currency that is not the functional currency of
the Group.

At the end of each reporting period, the carrying amounts of
the monetary assets and liabilities of the Group, which are
denominated in foreign currencies, are as follows:

AEBITERBBRTELEER
BEXZHRZUBT  EXTRARKE
B-NERBRAARBERS  EH#ER
BEMBEMEL  YAXKEINEES
AN B FTE -

REREHR - AEESINEFENE
BEEMBENREEHIIWDT

Liabilities Assets
=L BE
2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAET
RMB AR 647 553 63,482
UsD =TT 936 1,531 42,271

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk of
RMB against HK$. Since HK$ is pegged to USD, the Group
does not expect any significant movement in USD/HK$
exchange rate and this is excluded from the sensitivity analysis
below. Management will monitor foreign exchange exposure to
mitigate the foreign currency risk.

The Group currently do not have a foreign currency hedging
policy in respect of assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currency. The Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

AEBT2ATARELBITHINEE
B o APBTTEE T HE - NEBEAY
ETLABTEERTEHREAEE
HAREBEETISRESN - EEE
% B2 22 91 BEE 21 B LA B EC S0 L B

AREEIREWEAINEHENEER
BEBIEINELEIPBR - AEEHZ )
ERINERR  UYREBRRNAERERY
RERINE R -
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35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in HK$ against RMB. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used which represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting period for a
5% change in foreign currency rates. A negative number below
indicates an increase in pre-tax profit where HK$ weaken 5%
against RMB. For a 5% strengthening of HK$ against the
relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact
on the profit and the balances below would be positive.

35. EREMERRATEANE(F)

misEM (&)

IR BE (E)

BB E ST
TRAAFINAREEBETHAARE
BEREZESDZBRRE - 5% BRERE X
REBEBHIINEEXRTRESEEE 2
it > BURES M EBERAINEHEZF
AXNEBIER AR MEHRAINE
[EREBSNIFEL AR - NIIRHRBR
BLRARELZBES%E - BADGFIEE
& - BT H AR ER A ES
AU TN R EREEFEZERY
& .

RMB AR

Management considered the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent foreign currency risk as the exposure at the end
of each reporting period does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Interest rate risk

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates arises primarily from bank
deposits with a floating interest rate. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest rate risk.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have
variable rate interest bearing liabilities. The Group has no
exposure to interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2017, the Group is exposed to interest rate
risk relates primarily to variable rate borrowings (note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements for the details of secured
loan). The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.
The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.
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2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T TETT
28 3,142

EEERS  HRERESHRZERK
BERRERNZ AR - BMERE DT HE
BINERBRTARKMYE -

Fll Z & B

MR2018F12A31H » AEBEE M ™
B RE B R EBRIZZEF R B
RSRITIE SR M ELE - AL B F BT
AT EHFEFERRR -

RBEHR ARELEBFEEE - K
£5 5 3f 4% 1 4 F) R R

MR2017412A31H » REB A S 2
MEREBREESRZEEE (EBEE
HEXREBEZFL2HEAVBREMFE
26) c AEEZWMARKEEEEREE
RETEMGF RS FLE - AEH
B AUNC 48 3% S R R R R - A 0 B
BEESERMERRE  WHEEKERE
B E AT RER o



35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at
the end of each reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments outstanding at the end of
the reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. A 50
basis points increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s pre-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2017 would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$75,000. This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
variable rate of borrowings.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a financial
instrument would fail to discharge its obligation under the terms
of the financial instrument and cause a financial loss to the
Group.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had certain concentration of
credit risk as 100% (2017: 98%) of the trade receivables of the
Group were due from top five customers. Management
monitored the financial background and creditability of those
debtors on an ongoing basis.

The Group’s policy to manage credit risk is to deal only with
credit worthy counterparties. In order to minimise the credit
risk, the management of the Group has formulated a credit
policy and, delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is take.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. The Group does
not obtain collateral from customers.

35. EREMERRATEANE(F)

FlZEERE (&)

B E ST
TXBREDT RIS WS HIRIEDT
ETEMNKRREBREE - %2 HRER
THRAAREEZERTAREFRE
BERH - SOEH LK TRRAETE
EEABABRSHERREER - 75
REEEUNESIEAREE BTG -

il F = BT BES0EE - i ArA H A
BHERSTE  AAKEREZE20174
128318 L EHI BB ADE M #m 4
I AN#75,0008 7T - W HEEHRNRAE
BASEREEN KRB -

1S E /A fE R 5 B 5F 1
EERRESRIANEFHRERT
TR TAEGRRAETHNREETEHAKE
XEXPBIERMER

MR2018F12A31H  ERAEEE 5
JE W3R T H100% (20174 : 98%) A g
WRAARRFRE BASEEETEE
EhEKR -  EEEREERZSEBA

BT B RS -

AEEEEEERARNBRASREER
RENBF IS - REEREEER
B AEBEEECDHEEEREK X
ZKEGEEEBEEERE #RER
FMAETHMEERF - NRERRIRRE
178

AEEEHERENE -—SBNEEDN
B EPEITENEEF G - ZEFH
TP BENRIMN RS RREDN
NHREN  AZBEFHFEER @ K
REZFPEEMERERREHEBNE
£t REBYEREFPWEHER S -
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Except for debtors that are credit impaired, the Group
measures loss allowances for trade receivables equal to lifetime
ECLs, which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group’s historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s different customer
bases.

Measurement of expected credit loss on collective basis
The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables except
for those who are credit impaired at 31 December 2018:

35. EREMERRATEANE(F)

FlZEE b (&)

1EE/E MG R B EFF G ()

BB EEREZ BKRES - AEE
LE SRR ENBRBEHESFN
EHIRHEEERE  ARSBEIERE
REEAERE - ARAKENBER
EBBRERBRTRER D BMAEIEER
AW E|MEANF - BER B AR B &
BREYELASETNRTEEREL
— & e

KERREFS BRI EEEIR

TRIEHBENR2018F12A31B K&
BrriAZEERRNE S EWE (D
HREEERERIIN BMEEBELZ

HH
Average Gross
expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
EHEH

[ oFiE HAREE B E
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FETT

Neither yet past due nor 37 #8180 B Sl Rk (B
impaired 0.00% 54,105 -
1-30 days past due # #31-30K 0.38% 31,478 118
31-60 days past due # #331-60K 0.38% 5,693 22
61-90 days past due 1 H161-90°K 0.00% - -
91-180 days past due # H191-180K 0.39% 5,771 23
Over 180 days past due B HI180K A 6.66% 93,101 6,198

190,148 6,361

Average expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 2 years. These rates are adjusted to
reflect differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions over
the expected lives of the receivables.

Measurement of expected credit loss on individual basis
Receivables relating to customers with known financial
difficulties or significant doubt on collection of receivables are
assessed individually for allowance for credit losses. At 31
December 2018, the balance of allowance for credit losses in
respect of these individually assessed receivables was
HK$4,726,000.

160 China Trustful Group Limited FEIZE&EBAER A T

FHEREREINERNEEMFHER
BREERBHL - ZFLXCERBUR
BRI SR I 2 SR e B AV AR - B
AT 50 B 7N 6% [ Y e W SR TR R AT 17 AR
MEBERRANBERZER -

BB E ETER (S EEE

Bz S0 ERE S I B ok E e
WHREBEBREFRNETF A B ERK
BEBETEEBRBEETG - R
20184 12A31H » B E&K BB 4
MEKFIBEE BN EEBERELESRA
4,726,000/ JT °



35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

35. EREMERRATEANE(F)

Market risk (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Measurement of expected credit loss on individual basis
(Continued)

The following table present the balances of gross amount and
the loss allowance in respect of the individually assessed
receivables at 31 December 2018:

FIEEM (&)
15 £ B T AR 1 (42
B E B E R B EHSE A ()

TR EHNE B BT H A EUFRIER2018
F12A31HMR ST N SRR AL

Average Gross

expected
loss rate

FHEH

BHEE

carrying
amount

SR E

Loss
allowance

BEEE

On individual basis LA

HK$°000
FHET

HK$°000
FHET

100% 4,726 4,726

The Group deposited its cash and cash equivalents with
approved and reputable banks. Bankruptcy or insolvency of the
banks may cause the Group’s right with respect to cash and
cash equivalents held to be delayed or limited. Management of
the Company monitors the credit rating of these banks on an
ongoing basis, and considers that the Group’s exposure to
credit risk at 31 December 2018 and 2017 were minimal.

The credit quality of deposits paid, other receivables and
amount due from a related company has been assessed with
reference to historical information about the counterparties
default rates of the counterparties. The directors are of the
opinion that the credit risk of these amounts are low and
therefore the average expected credit loss rate is assessed to
be immaterial and no provision was made for the year ended
31 December 2018.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group since prior
years and are considered to have been effective in limiting the
Group’s exposure to credit risk to a desirable level.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its obligations associated with its financial liabilities that
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The
Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of
trade payables and its financing obligations, and also in respect
of its cash flow management. The Group’s objective is to
maintain an appropriate level of liquid assets and committed
lines of funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group since
prior years and considered by management of the Company to
have been effective in managing liquidity risks.

AEBBHIB S MRS EEMFERNE
RO REBRFHNIETT - 2 FRITHE
RENEEINGERAEERFERS
MR & E B YRR 1T E kBB
file RAREEESRFEERZERIT
REEL  WREAREBR2018F K&
2017F12A3IA MASZ N EERKEBE
o

ARREEBLEHFHBEEREY
FHENERENEZS - HMEW T
FEK—HEEARZIEETEELEE
T  BEERARSREZEERRR
K AtFHBEHEEEEBEIEAT
EX BT EE £2018F12831H
IEFERTHIR B -

AEEEREFE—HEEREERE
MABBRTEESE G AEENE
5 2 B PR A PR SR ABAKF o

REE £ R

MEBE SRR ERNEEREEEITIAR
XA —ERMEEFENSRAEEA
BEENERARER ASEEBEZESHE
NHERBITREAETEARERS
MEEENTEAERDETRER - A%
BN ERASEREEKRFORDEENR
RERHAEAHRES  UEAEMEE
HESHE -

AEEERAFE—BEENRDESR
R ARREEERRZERRABX
BEERBEZEAR -
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MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining contractual maturities
for its financial liabilities at 31 December 2018 and 2017. When
the creditor has a choice of when the liability is settled, the
liability is included on the basis of the earliest date on when the
Group can be required to pay.

Where the settlement of the liability is in instalments, each
instalment is allocated to the earliest period in which the Group

is committed to pay.

Non-derivative financial liabilities ##£2HEEF

Interest
rate
%

%%

Within
one year
oron
demand
—ERE
HK$’000
FET

WELER
HK$000

nEE R ()

35. SREMEERAFENE(E)

N RBE RN E B R20185F K2017412
A31EEeMAEBENRTANTEHD
W-EERAFREEEEAEER " 8
BEEERAEEREREENZEHH

N

EoEEEaER -

B A A e & A e

At 31 December 2018

20185 12R 318

Within More
2-5 than
years 5 years

AENL
HK$000
FET FET

Total
undiscounted
amount

RAEREH
HK$°000
FET

EDHNETAE

Carrying
amount

REE
HK$°000
FET

Trade and other payables B REMEMFEA - 21,697 - - 21,697 21,697
Amount due to a director EN—ZEZHE - 30,000 - - 30,000 30,000

Amounts dug to non-controlling JE T JEHR AR i 25 20 IE
interests - 122 - - 122 122
Total Foh 51,819 - - 51,819 51,819

At 31 December 2017
1201741273318
Interest ~ Within one Total
rate  year or on Within ~ More than  undiscounted Carrying
% demand  2-5 years 5 years amount amount
—FRY
FlZw REXE MERFA #AFNUE RER B EEE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET FET
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiiEeRAE

Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMNTIE - 127473 = = 127,478 127,473
Secured loan BEAER 6 15,089 = = 15,089 15,000
Amount due to a shareholder e — R R - 5,438 - = 5,438 5,438

Amounts due to non-controlling Féﬁ iz Hﬂ&**ﬁ
interests - 118 - - 118 118
Amounts due to related companies &t #IE A B FUE - 7,242 - - 7,242 7,242
Convertible bonds ARRES 7.41 53,052 = = 53,062 51,444
Total st 208,412 - - 208,412 206,715
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35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities carried at cost or amortised cost were not
materially different from their fair values at 31 December 2018
and 2017, except for the liability of convertible bonds, the fair
value of the liability component of convertible bonds is
approximately HK$52,034,000 at 31 December 2017. The fair
value of liability component of convertible bonds is measured
using discounted cash flows method in which all significant
inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable market
data, thus classified level 2 in fair value measurement.

As described in note 20 to the consolidated financial statement,
the fair value of contingent consideration receivable in relation
to the acquisition of Core Kingdom Group are measured at fair
value under expected present value method and take into
consideration of whether the Profit Guarantee is probable to be
fulfilled. The unobservable inputs used in respect of the
valuation are (i) expected future profitability for three scenarios
and (i) probability distribution of three different conditions.

The fair value measurement is negatively correlated to the
expected profitability of Tong Yin and its subsidiary.

35. EREMERRATEANE(F)

ERIBEZAFHE
INEE IR AN S B SR AR D BR Y S R &
ERepEENERIERELN2018F &
mwimﬁm5%ﬂ$ﬁﬁ%iﬁ%
ﬁT#%%%mﬁ%%%'ﬂﬁ%
15#13 EE D R2017F12A31H K A
A% 552,034,000/ 7  A] A% &5
BEFOPHATFEDNRATERERE
E (AR EE R ABIBHY AL HE
FEEARAERMSEE)GTE WO
BATFEFENE_H -

ARG MRS TR R M SE20FT I 58 - AR
fECore Kingdom& B R WA RE R
TEDERBHRREZEZATEFE

W4 5T K AR B R G AIEE - FifE A
ﬁ@ﬁﬁfﬁﬂ’]TTEﬁﬁ?ﬁau)\%ﬁfiﬁ(i)E{

{E““EI’JE‘EHHXXET‘J EH R() =& TR
ERTHBFEEN D -
NPEFEEBRILEMBRRNESR
BAONEEEEEE-
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

In estimating the fair value of a financial asset, the directors
worked closely with Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model. The management of the Company reported the findings to
the directors at the end of the reporting period to explain the
cause of fluctuations in fair value of the financial asset.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in
determining the fair value of contingent consideration receivable
are disclosed above.

The following table presents the changes in contingent
consideration receivable which are classified as level 3
instruments:

35. EREMERRATEANE(F)

EMIAZAFEE)
REESREEATER EFNER
FEANAMEERAERAAELESE
BB ETERBARE - ARRERE
BRHREMRAEEERSER - UHA
ZEBMEEAFERBHNERER -

RETERKRIARE R FERERNG
BIERBABIRER I EHE -

TREJHEAE=MTAZ ERHA
BB :

2017

HK$’000

FHEIT

At 1 January M1A1H 7,107
Compensation from profit guarantee i AR 7S 2 8 (2,596)
Loss arising on fair value change NEEEHELE BB (4,511)
At 31 December M®12H31H =

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into
or out of Level 3.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out of fair
value hierarchy levels as of the date of the events or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.
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H E20184F K2017412A31H It &F
B E—HEE_HzETEEE L
EEBEREBNE =R -

AEENBRRASNSIBBRZEMHXB
MEHAMEARXFERBRZENEA
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36. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 36.
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern and to
provide an adequate return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged during the current and prior
years.

The Group is not subject to any external imposed capital
requirements.

Gearing ratio

The directors review the capital structure on annual basis. As
part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
the recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through payment of dividends, issue
of new shares or repurchase of existing shares as well as issue
of new debts or the redemption of existing debts.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as

EXER

AEEEREEAN  NERASENE
BAFELE FANESELCEEER
¥l RENERETREE - KK
BHERBRBRAFERBEFERR
Z(,.E.. o

N 82 1B 3 48 0 G A (] S BR B N O B K BB

HERMRALE
ESBFERTEARE - (FRltRT
28D BEEZEEAKRAREESR
AEAEENER - REEZNHEREZ
& ARERERRERE - BITHK
FIBEIIRE RN AR BETHERKERE
REEBTEERRBERRERE -

RBEEPRZEERBLRLOT :

follows:
PLRE: 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Total debts (Note) B85 (M 7) 30,122 66,444
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BB ERBREEED (56,683) (293,853)
Net cash IR& H5 (26,561) (227,409)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A A & A A Gz 637,726 603,549
Total debts to equity ratio B/ sE SRR L X 5% 1%

Note:  Total debts include amount due to a director, amounts due to
non-controlling interests, secured loan and convertible bonds in notes
23, 26 and 27 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Bz - BEREREED BING S M RKRATE2S -

26 R2TATR M EN —BERHUR - BRIIEE
iR IR - BEMERRABRRES
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37. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 37.

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were or future cash flows will be classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash

flows from financing activities.

METHELENERBRYHER

TERALAEERERE TN AER
B BRASKIRCED - BELD
FREAMBENARSREME 3K
KREREBAEEGARSRERT
DEARERBAELANESRE -

Dividend
paid to Amount Amount
non-controlling toa toa Convertible  Secured
interests director shareholder bonds loan Total
EfF
FERER  Efi-& Eft—4
MEE EERE  BRERE  TRRES FRAER h
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2017 W2017F1A18 = - 5,438 47,781 15,000 68,219
Interest expenses recognised BRRZHERS - - - 3,663 900 4,563
Financing cash outflows BERERM - = = = (900) (900)
At 31 December 2017 and R2017F12R318 &
at 1 January 2018 2018F1A1H - - 5,438 51,444 15,000 71,882
Interest expenses recognised BRERZHBRHR = = = 1,608 307 1,916
Conversion of convertible bonds spnkEs - - - (53,052) = (53,052)
Dividend declared EERKE 42,615 = = = = 42,615
Financing cash inflow BEREMA - 30,000 - - - 30,000
Financing cash outflows BERS L (42,515) - (5,438) - (15307)  (63,260)
At 31 December 2018 12018127318 - 30,000 - - - 30,000
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38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 38.
The following table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results of
the year or assets of the Group. To give details of the other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

Bt /B 2 BIRF 1R

REBEFZER  TERMAIIRZARAT
MEBAR REBFEAFEZEENR
BRASEEETZHND - REBEESFZ
ERILEMHBAR ZFHIFRIGESR
BRI -

Principal activities
and place of operations

IEEBREERY

Issued and
fully paid Proportion of
Place/ Class of share/  share capital/ ownership interest
country of registered registered  and voting power held
Name of subsidiary incorporation  capital held share capital by the Company
AL BRBER/BE ERARERE  FAIARFZAEE
HEBASE®H W/ ER HEREE %/ EREX RBFELH
Ampress Merchandising Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100,000 - 100%
NEEXERAF &k LiaRk 100,000/ T
Ampress Packaging Asia Limited Hong Kong QOrdinary HK$500,000 - 100%
NER% (BH)ARARF B0 EBR 500,000/ 7T
Australian Green Transport Australia Ordinary AUD100 100% -
Technology Pty Limited
(*Australian Green Transport”)
Australian Green Transport BN LAk 10087
Technology Pty Limited
(T Australian Green Transport])
Core Kingdom Limited BVI QOrdinary USD50,000 100% 100%
Core Kingdom Limited RERNEE LAk 50,0005 7
Display & Packaging Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$300,000 - 100%
Display & Packaging Limited BA LRk 300,000% ¢
EC Pacific Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500,000 - 100%
BE(KTH)BRAA B LaR 500,000% 7T
Powerwell Pacific BVI Ordinary USD800 - 100%
Powerwell Pacific EERTEE  TRR 800 TT
Runhao Technology (HK) Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%
AR (BB)BRAR &% Lk 10,0007
State Achieve Investments Limited ~ BVI Ordinary USD1 100% 100%
State Achieve Investments Limited ~ XBExZES  LARK 1%

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 ZF R

Trading of watches, costume
jewelleries and accessories
in Hong Kong

REBBEES AEKE
Rt

Trading of display and
packaging products in
Hong Kong

REBEERIIRBER

Dormant

LEEH

Investment holding
REER

Trading of display and
packaging products in
Hong Kong

REBBERIIRBER

Trading of watches and
accessories in Hong Kong

REEEEEXRESH

Investment holding

RARRK

Investment holding

RELR

Investment holding

RERR
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38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

38. MEBABHE (&)

Principal activities
and place of operations

IREBROEHE

Issued and
fully paid Proportion of
Place/ Class of share/  share capital/ ownership interest
country of registered registered  and voting power held
Name of subsidiary incorporation  capital held share capital by the Company
I BHER/ B8 ERTRERE FOAIREZREE
HEBASER w4/ HEX HEREF k% #ERBA RRFELO
International Faith Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKDA1 100% 100%
BREERRAR B il 18T
Ecological Green Transportation United Kingdom  Ordinary 1,000 Pound 100% 100%
Limited sterling
Ecological Green Transportation HE B 1,000 &
Limited
Ecological Green Transportation Hong Kong QOrdinary HK$1 100% -
Limited
Ecological Green Transportation & LAR 1T
Limited
HIBREEBEEBRAA The PRC Registered RMB10,000,000 51% 51%
MIARECBEEERAA e Bl ARE
10,000,0007C
FERBYICBRARAR The PRC Registered RMB5,000,000 51% -
TBREN(ERERAA i i ARE
5,000,0007c
TAREREERERAA The PRC Registered RMB2,000,000 51% 51%
FEREREERBRAR i il ARE
2,000,0007c
MMBEREERERAF (Note) The PRC Registered HK$40,000,000 100% 100%
RNEBREEBARAR (W) TE il 40,000,000 7
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Sale of rechargeable batteries,
electric vehicles and related
products

BERTH EHFER
REER

Manufacture and design of
electric vehicles and related
products

EERRGHE
HEER

AER

Manufacture and design of
electric vehicles and related
products

EERZHEYTER
HBER

Retail and wholesale of luxury
brand silverwares, silver
utensils and luxury goods in
the PRC

RPBEREZERBEESR
BR%E REEAREGD

Retail and wholesale of luxury
brand silverwares and silver
utensils in the PRC

REBEREZERREE SR
efE REEZAR

Retail and wholesale of luxury
brand silverwares and silver
utensils in the PRC

REBEREZERBEE G m
WHRE REEA

Retail and wholesale of luxury
brand silverwares and silver
utensils in the PRC

REEREZERREE SR
MR REEA



38.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

38. MBAEHE (&)

Principal activities
and place of operations

IREBROEHE

Issued and
fully paid Proportion of
Place/ Class of share/  share capital/ ownership interest
country of registered registered  and voting power held
Name of subsidiary incorporation  capital held share capital by the Company
U3 BHER,/ B8 ERTRER FOAIREZREE
HEBASER By /ER HEREE %/ EREx RRFELO
MMEKESTZBRRAF (Note) The PRC Registered HK$100,000,000 100% 100%
BNERES R ERRAR (H2) & i 100,000,000/ 7T
AMERESTEERAR The PRC Registered RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
ANEREDEARAT i il ARE
10,000,0007T
BMEFREHERBERAR  ThePRC Registered RMB20,000,000 100% -
ANEFAEHERBERAR  HE Bl ARE
20,000,0007T
IREKEDIEARAT The PRC Registered ~ RMB10,000,000 100% -
IRGEKETERERAR HE R} ARE
10,000,0007T

Note: Wholly foreign-owned enterprise

Except for Core Kingdom Limited and State Achieve Investments
Limited which are directly held by the Company, all other
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

Bt - ZONERE

BIREEA -

Research and development,
manufacturing and sale of
rechargeable batteries,
electric vehicles and related
products and provision of
related services in the PRC

RAERE FEREERE
it EBERAEERN
RHEERS

Research and development,
manufacturing and sale of
rechargeable batteries,
electric vehicles and related
products and provision of
related services in the PRC

KBRS £ERBEERE
it EETERAEESD N
RERBERS

Trading of electric vehicles and
related products and
provision of related services
in the PRC

RPEEEEYERIEBE
an DA SRR AR AR R AR

Research and development,
manufacturing and sale of
rechargeable batteries,
electric vehicles and related
products and provision of
related services in the PRC

RAERE FEREERE
it EBERAEERN
RHEERS

B Core Kingdom Limited} State
Achieve Investments Limitedfi A" A 7]

BERE MAEMKHBAREHAR
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38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. MIBASIFHE (&)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BEERKEERESZIEEZEMHEBAT
material non-controlling interests 3
The following table lists out the information relating to Tong Yin TREFVEBRBLREWB AT (KNE
and its subsidiaries, subsidiaries of the Group with material Ei#AEE AEIERESNMBAT) 2
non-controlling interests. The summarised financial information BE o WNE2X 2B ER B EIE R E
presented below represents the amounts before any HEMM AR EY AT 2 &5 -
intercompany elimination.
Proportion of ownership
Place of incorporation and interest and voting right held
Name of subsidiaries principal place of business by non-controlling interests
o 1 A% 3L 3 B FERERRAZ

MEASZE TESEBE ARG ERELL B

2017
Tong Yin The PRC 49% 49%
ik F 5
FBREREERAR QA (Note) The PRC 49% 49%
LEREREERER QR (Hit) H
FBEREXLERER LA The PRC 49% =
FBEREXLERER DA i
Note: L/EREREEEAR AT is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tong Yin Kt - EBREREEEERARABRZ ZEMN

(together with Tong Yin referred to as the “Tong Yin Group”). BARGERBE B ARBER]) -
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38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. MBASIHE (2)

Tong Yin Group BIREE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FET
Current assets mEEE 32,140 113,421
Non-current assets ERBE E 1,782 1,674
Current liabilities mENA R (11,582) (14,822)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE - -
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A2 BB A JE1GHE % 11,393 51,138
Non-controlling interests JEIE AR RE S 10,947 49,133
Revenue 5 A 41,532 69,252
Expenses S (34,808) (39,740)
Profit attributable to owners of ZiN/NEIEZ T =N
the Company FEAE % F 263 15,052
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests  FF 12 J& 4 25 JE (& 325 7 6,461 14,460
Profit for the year F R A 6,724 29,512
Other comprehensive (loss)/income RNAVHER AE(REAM
attributable to owners of the Company 2 (Ei8), s (2,220) 3,109
Other comprehensive (loss)/income eI HE S B R B ftb 2 T
attributable to non-controlling interests (BB M= (2,133) 2,987
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FREMEE (BER), S
for the year (4,353) 6,096

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 &3 171



172

38.

39.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. MIBASIFHE (&)
Tong Yin Group (Continued) BIREE (2)
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FET
Total comprehensive (loss)/income ANAHEEAEGEERE
attributable to owners of the Company (B18), /W a % (1,957) 18,161
Total comprehensive income attributable JEIE R RS FEE 2
to non-controlling interests W #8758 4,328 17,447
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAEEUZFAEE 2,371 35,608
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests B TIHERERRE 42,515 -
Net cash (used in)/generated from LETEE) (TR EERN
operating activities e FE (6,338) 48,398
Net cash (used in)/generated from WEES (TR EEN
investing activities REFEE (321) 3
Net cash used in financing activities BEEBATAMIE S FEE (42,515) =
Net cash (outflow)/inflow Be (R /WA FRE (49,174) 48,401
Expect for Tong Yin Group, the directors consider that the BrimifEEE N EER A - HIE2018F

non-controlling interests of other non-wholly owned subsidiary
during the year ended 31 December 2018 is insignificant to the
Group and thus is not separately presented in these
consolidated financial statements. In addition, no separate
financial information of this non-wholly owned subsidiary are
required to be presented.

ACQUISITION OF NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
On 28 December 2018, the Group acquired an additional 10%
equity interest in Australian Green Transport by netting off
current account with non-controlling interests. As a result of the
acquisition, the Group’s shareholding in Australian Green
Transport increased from 90% to 100%. The Group recognised
an increase in non-controlling interests of approximately
HK$138,000 and a decrease in equity attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately HK$140,000.

China Trustful Group Limited FEZZ&EBER A 7
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12A31AIEFE 2 HEMIER BB R A
ZHERERHAEEMFTL TSR -
At - WERN % Fer A B MR IFES
25 WINTEFEBZ2ZIEZEN
BRRZHBER -

W g FE R AR HE 2

2018412 H28H « AN & B & 18 1Bk
FF 12 IR #E 25 2 4 F BR W BB Australian
Green TransportZ 85N 0% AXAE ° FR
W B8 =18 - AN & [E RAustralian Green
Transport,Z % # F190%1E 11 Z=100% °
AN 65 B i R FE 15 A 4 21 38 N 49138,000
BILRANBHEE ABGEEZR LD
140,000/ 7T °



40. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
The Group entered into the following major non-cash investing
and financing activities which were not reflected in the
consolidated statement of cash flows:

(a)

On 8 November 2017, the Group served the exercise
notice on Mr. Zhang to exercise the put option right
attached to the available-for-sale financial assets, and
require Mr. Zhang to purchase the subject shares at the
consideration of HK$9,000,000. The proceed was settled
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

On 1 June 2018, 486,715,358 shares were allotted and
issued upon the conversion of convertible bond with the
principal amount of HK$53,051,974 at the conversion
price of HK$0.109 per share by convertible bond holder.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
acquired items of property, plant and equipment with the
amounts of approximately HK$3,582,000 of which
amount of approximately HK$2,865,000 was prepaid for
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

On 28 December 2018, the Group acquired an additional
10% equity interest in Australian Green Transport by
netting off current account with non-controlling interests
with the amounts of approximately HK$2,000.

40. EXHFBRERH
AEBMBETTIINERFEREGRE At
BEY TPV ENGAATRE
RARBR :

(@)

R2017F11 A8H » REBRE %L
ABHITEBRNE - UITEAHEH
ESREERMMZRHEE U2
Sk Z 5 A BA B 9,000,0007% JT B
BEMRD - ZATSREEREE
2018F12AG1H L FEHE -

MN20185%E6H1H - 486,715,358
IR AT RRESFEARS
1% A% 15.0.1097%8 JT &9 #2 f% B 7K
% % 553,051,974 JT 2 7] # &
BEHFBI R EET -

REZE2018F12HA31H IEFE -
AEBEAENDE  BERKRK
BIE B W% %4 A3,582,000/8
JC  H R 492,865,000/ 7T 2 R A
Z2017F12A31H L FEBEE S
I o

2018124280 @« AN & B U iE
FEBRNGIEERER 2 EFRY
2,000 T Yz B Australian Green
Transport,Z Z89M 0% A% #E o
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41.

42,

43.

44,

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

As referred to in note 10, on 18 May 2018, the Group
discontinued its sourcing business operation at the time of
disposal of the Disposal Group. The net assets of the Disposal
Group at the date of disposal were as follows:

41.

HE—RMMEAT

ANt FE10FT - 20185 818H » A&
EERLELEERBRRIEEEEER
ESX% NESEREERBZEE
SREEMR

HK$’000
F#T

Property, plant and equipment (note 16) Y BERERE (HiE16) 303
Inventories FE 399
Trade receivables 2 5 IR 2,407
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e - BN RIE R H M E W FRIE 1,360
Tax recoverable AT Y B Fi 18 1,004
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREFEY 6,780
Trade and other payables B 5 K& HE M 5RIR (4,978)
Net assets disposed of EHECEEFR 7,275
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMBAT K :
Cash consideration received BWIRERE 7,800
Net assets disposed of EHECEEFS (7,275)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ekl Ol NS L= o ey 525
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELEZHESRNEE :
— Cash consideration received - BlWREeRE 7,800
— Cash and cash equivalents disposed of —BEHEZHRSRRSEEYD (6,780)
Net cash inflow on disposal HEEELEZRESRAFRE 1,020
COMPARATIVE FIGURES 42. [LEHF

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform
with the disclosure requirements in respect of the discontinued
operation set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 at 1
January 2018. Under the transition methods, comparative
information is not restated. Further details of the changes in
accounting policies are disclosed in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There is no significant event took place subsequent to the end
of the reporting period.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March
2019.
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44.

AETHERBRFERERDOEUNTEEH
R BMRMTI0MEE R ILLEE
BZBEBRE °

AREBDHN2018F1 A1BERERES
SRS EAFOH B BT IEHREE
BIZE155% - IBIBBEE  EREARTF
B - BASHRRESH 2 HE—FLFHIB
RERE ISR R M 22 o

REHESEHE
RBERRRYBEEEFNEKRER -
FEMBERRZEM

FEMBIMKREN201963H26 R K E
EEHERBEETIE -



FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hFHBMR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E20184F 1231 H IF F/Z
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET FHET
(restated)
(A ZE5)
Results 25
Revenue WA 215,696 525,269 308,268 222,647 151,128
Profit before income tax & P15 B4 il i A 21,121 139,811 39,080 20,864 9,491
Income tax expense FT{SHim X (6,960) (40,986) (14,819) (11,798) (2,974)
Profit for the year from continuing & 45 48 45 4 % 7%
operations EHE 2% T 14,161 98,825 24,261 9,066 6,517
(Loss)/profit for the year from FANERIEEEER
discontinued operation E4Ez (BB),/#F (4,880) (7,143) - - 282
Profit for the year F N A 9,281 91,682 24,261 9,066 6,799
Profit/(loss) for the year FREREF
attributable to: (B#8) :
Owners of the Company KAFEE A 2,960 77,222 10,328 (1,664) 6,799
Non-controlling interests 1R = 6,321 14,460 13,933 10,730 =
9,281 91,682 24,261 9,066 6,799
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY FHFHIFEBE

As at 31 December

Assets and liabilities

Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

R2018%12H31H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
G0N HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FETT FET FEr FEr FE T
EERERE

EE 722,126 905,493 402,797 224,463 65,992
FEN=R (73,496) (252,811)  (144,799) (62,262) (41,815)
648,630 652,682 257,998 162,201 24177

TAATEGER :
ViN/NEIEZ =N 637,726 603,549 226,312 142,555 24177
IEPE R = 10,904 49,133 31,686 19,646 =
648,630 652,682 257,998 162,201 24177
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